
 

 

TRANSPORTATION POLICY BOARD MEETING 
Monday, October 15, 2018 

Room 3.102, Joe C. Thompson Center, University of Texas Campus 

Red River and Dean Keeton Streets, Austin, Texas 

6:00 p.m. 

 

REVISED AGENDA 
WATCH CAMPO LIVE: www.campotexas.org/livestream 

 

 

1. Certification of Quorum – Quorum requirement is 11 members…………………Chair Will Conley  
 

2. Public Comments 
Comments are limited to topics not on the agenda but may directly or indirectly affect transportation in the 

CAMPO geographic area.  Up to 10 individuals may sign up to speak – each of whom must contact the 

CAMPO office by 4:30 p.m., Monday, October 15, 2018. 

  

3. Chair Announcements ……………………………………………………………Chair Will Conley 
 

4. Report from the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Chair ………………….… Mr. Ed Polasek 

The Chair of the TAC will provide an overview of TAC discussion items and recommendations to the 

Transportation Policy Board. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, the Board may recess into a closed meeting (an executive 

session) to deliberate any item on this agenda if the Chairman announces the item will be deliberated in 

executive session and identifies the section or sections of Chapter 551 that authorize meeting in executive 

session. A final action, decision, or vote on a matter deliberated in executive session will be made only after the 

Board reconvenes in an open meeting. 

 

5. Executive Session ………………………………………….……………………. Chair Will Conley 
The Transportation Policy Board will recess to an Executive Session, if necessary. 

 

 

ACTION:  

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO COMMENT ON ITEM 6 IN THE SECTION BELOW.   
 

6. Discussion and Approval of August 13, 2018 Meeting Summary 

 ............................................................................................................... Mr. Ashby Johnson, CAMPO 
Mr. Johnson will present the August 13, 2018 meeting summary and request Transportation Policy Board 

approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

http://www.campotexas.org/livestream


 

Transportation Policy Board Agenda – October 15, 2018  Page 2  

 

 

INFORMATION: 

    

 

7. Update on Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority Cap Remap 

........................................................................................................ Mr. Randy Clarke, Capital Metro 
Mr. Clarke will update the Transportation Policy Board on Capital Metro’s CAP Remap service change.   

 

8. Presentation on Regional Incident Management Study 

.....................................................................................Mr. Tom Fowler, Kimley-Horn & Associates 
Mr. Fowler will provide an update on CAMPO’s Regional Incident Management Study. 

 

9. Update on Public Participation Plan (PPP) …………………………..….Ms. Doise Miers, CAMPO 

Ms. Miers will provide an overview of the updates to the draft PPP. 

 

10. Executive Director’s Report on Transportation Planning Activities 

a. 2019 Transportation Policy Board Meeting Schedule 

b. FY 2018 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Project Call 

c. Capital-Alamo Connection Study Joint MPO TAC Workshop 

d. High Speed Transportation Study 

e. CAMPO PARK(ing) Day 2018 

 

11. Announcements 

a. Next Technical Advisory Committee Meeting – October 24, 2018 

b. Next Transportation Policy Board Meeting – December 10, 2018 

c. November 5, 2018 Transportation Policy Board Meeting - Canceled 

 

12. Adjournment 

 

 

 



For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/ 

1 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Transportation Policy Board 

Meeting Summary  

                                         August 13, 2018 

 

 

1. Certification of Quorum – Quorum requirement is 11 members ……………………….….. Chair Will Conley 

The CAMPO Transportation Policy Board was called to order by the Chair at 6:02 p.m. 

The roll was taken and a quorum was announced present. 

 

 Member Representing 
Member 

Attending 

Alternate 

Attending 

1 Will Conley, Chair Affiliate Non-Voting Member Y  

2 Steve Adler, Vice-Chair Mayor, City of Austin N Council Member Ann Kitchen 

3 Alison Alter City of Austin, District 10 Y  

4 Clara Beckett Commissioner, Bastrop County N  

5 Gerald Daugherty Commissioner, Travis County Y  

6 Sarah Eckhardt Judge, Travis County Y  

7 Jimmy Flannigan City of Austin, District 6 Y  

8 Victor Gonzales Mayor, City of Pflugerville Y  

9 Mark Jones Commissioner, Hays County N Commissioner Cynthia Long 

10 Ann Kitchen City of Austin, District 5 Y  

11 Cynthia Long Commissioner, Williamson County Y  

12 Terry McCoy, P.E. TxDOT-Austin District Y  

13 Terry Mitchell Capital Metro Board Member Y  

14 Craig Morgan Mayor, City of Round Rock N  

15 James Oakley Judge, Burnet County Y  

16 Dale Ross Mayor, City of Georgetown Y  

17 Brigid Shea Commissioner, Travis County Y  

18 Edward Theriot Commissioner, Caldwell County Y  

19 John Thomaides Mayor, City of San Marcos Y  

20 Jeffrey Travillion Commissioner, Travis County  Y  

21 Corbin Van Arsdale Mayor, City of Cedar Park Y  



For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/ 

2 

 

2. Public Comments 

 

The Chair recognized Mr. Roger Baker, who offered public comments on Long Range Transportation Planning 

Considerations.  

 

The Chair also recognized the following individuals who provided public comment on the CAMPO 2040 Plan 

Administrative Amendment. 

1. Ms. Beki Halpin, Fix 290 Coalition 

2. Mr. Steve Beers, Save Barton Creek Association  

 

The Chair later revised the order of the agenda to recognize remaining individuals signed up for public comments 

for remaining agenda items.  The Chair recognized Agenda Item 12A CAMPO 2040 Plan Administrative 

Amendment as the next order of business and recognized Mr. Ashby Johnson, CAMPO Executive Director who 

opened the item for discussion.   

  

Mr. Johnson reported that CAMPO received a request from the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) 

Austin District to process an amendment to the existing CAMPO 2040 Plan to revise the wording in the current 

project description for the Y at Oak Hill Project.  The revised wording was included in the meeting materials.  Mr. 

Johnson noted that the current Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) has not been amended as a result of this 

request.  

 

Mr. Johnson later reported that the Texas Transportation Commission will take action to approve the Y at Oak Hill 

Project in TxDOT’s Unified Transportation Program (UTP) later this month.  The Y at Oak Hill Project must be 

presented to the Transportation Policy Board for approval before an amendment is processed for inclusion into the 

TIP.  

 

The Chair recognized Mr. Terry McCoy, TxDOT Austin District Engineer who offered comments for the Y at Oak 

Hill Project.  Additional comments were offered by the Board. 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at the following links: http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/3/ and 

http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/4/.  

 

 

3. Chair Announcements ............................................................................................................ Chair Will Conley 

 

There were no announcements. 

 

 

4.   Report from the Technical Advisory Committee Chair ...................................... Mr. Ed Polasek, TAC Chair  

 

Mr. Ed Polasek reported that the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) did not convene during the months of June 

and July.  Mr. Polasek added that he and Mr. Ashby Johnson, CAMPO Executive Director have agreed that the 

TAC will only convene for action items and/or the discussion of specific plan elements as they move forward.   

Mr. Polasek also reported that the TAC has met with CAMPO staff to discuss the Regional Arterials Plan and 

MoKan/Northeast Subregional Study.  Mr. Polasek added that the TAC has also collaborated with CAMPO Staff 

and the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG), and the Travel Demand Management (TDM) Working 

Group on the upcoming TDM Workshop.   

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/5/. 

http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/3/
http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/4/


For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/ 

3 

 

 

5.  Executive Session ...................................................................................................................... Chair Will Conley 

 

An Executive Session was not convened. 

 

 

6. Discussion and Approval of June 11, 2018 Meeting Summary 

There were no public comments on the June 11, 2018 meeting summary. 

The Chair entertained a motion for approval of the June 11, 2018 meeting summary. 

Council Member Alison Alter moved for approval of the meeting summary, as presented. 

Commissioner Edward Theriot seconded the motion. 

 

The motion prevailed unanimously. 

 

Ayes:  Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald Daugherty, Judge Sarah Eckhardt, Council Member 

Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Council Member Ann Kitchen (Proxy for Mayor Steve Adler), 

Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for Commissioner Mark Jones), Mr. Terry McCoy, Mr. Terry Mitchell, Judge 

James Oakley, Mayor Dale Ross, Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, Mayor John 

Thomaides, Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion, and Mayor Corbin Van Arsdale  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  Commissioner Clara Beckett and Mayor Craig Morgan 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/6/.  

 

 

7.   Discussion and Approval of CAMPO Appointment to Capital Metro Board 

The Chair recognized the following individuals who provided public comment on the Discussion and Approval of 

CAMPO Appointment to the Capital Metro Board. 

1. Ms. Mona Mehdy, Private Citizen 

2. Ms. Zenobia Joseph, Private Citizen 

 

The Chair later entertained a motion for approval of the reappointment of Mr. Terry Mitchell to the Capital Metro 

Board.   

Mayor John Thomaides moved for approval of the reappointment of Mr. Terry Mitchell to the Capital Metro Board 

with  accompanying Resolution 2018-8-7.   

Commissioner Edward Theriot seconded the motion. 

Following comments and detailed discussion by the Board, the Chair called the vote.  



For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/ 

4 

 

The motion prevailed unanimously. 

Ayes:  Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald Daugherty, Judge Sarah Eckhardt, Council Member 

Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Council Member Ann Kitchen (Proxy for Mayor Steve Adler), 

Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for Commissioner Mark Jones), Mr. Terry McCoy, Mr. Terry Mitchell, Judge 

James Oakley, Mayor Dale Ross, Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, Mayor John 

Thomaides, Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion, and Mayor Corbin Van Arsdale  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  Commissioner Clara Beckett, Mayor Victor Gonzales, and Mayor Craig Morgan  

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/7/. 

 

 

8.  Discussion and Approval of Amendment #1 to the CAMPO Procurement Policy 

There were no public comments for the approval of Amendment #1 to the CAMPO Procurement Policy.  

The Chair recognized Ms. Theresa Hernandez, CAMPO Finance & Administration Manager, who provided a brief 

overview of Amendment #1 to the CAMPO Procurement Policy.  Staff later recommended a language change in 

the added clause to read, “…the Executive Director of the MPO may, with the consent and approval of the MPO’s 

Transportation Policy Board.” 

Judge James Oakley moved for approval of Amendment #1 to the CAMPO Procurement Policy with noted changes 

and accompanying Resolution 2018-8-8. 

Commissioner Edward Theriot seconded the motion. 

The motion prevailed unanimously. 

Ayes:  Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald Daugherty, Judge Sarah Eckhardt, Council Member 

Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Council Member Ann Kitchen (Proxy for Mayor Steve Adler), 

Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for Commissioner Mark Jones), Mr. Terry McCoy, Mr. Terry Mitchell, Judge 

James Oakley, Mayor Dale Ross, Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, Mayor John 

Thomaides, Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion, and Mayor Corbin Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  Commissioner Clara Beckett, Mayor Victor Gonzales, and Mayor Craig Morgan  

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/8/. 

 

 



For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/ 

5 

 

9.  Discussion and Approval of Resolution (2018-8-9) Amending the Unified Planning Work Program 

(UPWP)  

There were no public comments on discussion and approval of Resolution (2018-8-9) amending the UPWP. 

The Chair recognized Ms. Theresa Hernandez, CAMPO Finance & Administration Manager, who provided a brief 

overview of amendments to the UPWP which would add Public Law (PL) funding for staff support, Surface 

Transportation Program Metro Mobility (STP MM) funding for studies, and the addition of a Cedar Park Transit 

Study. 

Judge James Oakley moved for approval of Resolution (2018-8-9) amending the UPWP. 

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty seconded the motion. 

The motion prevailed unanimously. 

Ayes:  Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald Daugherty, Judge Sarah Eckhardt, Council Member 

Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Council Member Ann Kitchen (Proxy for Mayor Steve Adler), 

Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for Commissioner Mark Jones), Mr. Terry McCoy, Mr. Terry Mitchell, Judge 

James Oakley, Mayor Dale Ross, Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, Mayor John 

Thomaides, Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion, and Mayor Corbin Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  Commissioner Clara Beckett, Mayor Victor Gonzales, and Mayor Craig Morgan 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/9/. 

 

 

10.  Discussion of Draft CAMPO Code of Conduct for Transportation Policy Board Members 

 

The Chair provided opening remarks regarding the purpose of the CAMPO Code of Conduct for Transportation 

Policy Board Members prior to its presentation by Mr. Tim Tuggey, legal counsel for CAMPO.  

Mr. Tuggey reported that he collaborated review of the draft document with his colleague, Mr. Tim Sorrells, 

Attorney and Counselor at Law who specializes in Ethics Law to ensure objectivity.  Mr. Tuggey highlighted the 

following goals of the CAMPO Code of Conduct for Transportation Policy Board Members: 

1. Ensure objectivity of Board members and Staff 

2. Elaborate ethical obligations as Board members 

3. Adopts Robert’s Rules of Order. 

 

Mr. Tuggey later initiated further discussion on Section V: Staff Relations, Article (b) of the CAMPO Code of 

Conduct for Transportation Policy Board Members which addresses the number of hours of accumulated staff time 

to perform any work requested by a CAMPO Board member (other than the Chairperson).  

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/10/. 

  



For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/ 

6 

 

 

11. Presentation of TxDOT Safety Initiatives 

 

Mr. John Nevares, TxDOT Assistant Director of Transportation Operations provided an overview of ongoing safety 

activities for the TxDOT Austin District.  Mr. Nevares presented and discussed crash fatality data for the Austin 

region and the Texas Motor Vehicle Traffic Crash Facts for calendar year 2017.    

 

Mr. Nevares later identified engineering, enforcement, and education as three (3) important aspects to addressing 

the region’s safety challenges.  Mr. Nevares also highlighted various programs currently implemented to increase 

road safety. 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/11/. 

 

12.  Executive Director’s Report on the Transportation Planning Activities  

a. CAMPO 2040 Plan Administrative Amendment 

 

At the Chair’s request, this item was included in Agenda Item #2 Public Comments. 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/4/. 

 

 

b. Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Workshop on Transportation Demand Management 

(TDM) 

 

Mr. Ashby Johnson reported that CAMPO will host a workshop on Transportation Demand Management 

on August 16, 2018 in the Central Transportation Regional Mobility Authority’s Boardroom.  Mr. Johnson 

added that FHWA staff and a consultant will teach the 1-day workshop.   

 

c. CAMPO Presentation to Metrostudy 

 

Mr. Ashby Johnson further reported that he was asked to give a presentation to Metrostudy, a large group 

of commercial and residential developers in the region.  Mr. Johnson noted that it was an opportunity to 

better understand the development community and to forge partnerships in moving toward similar goals in 

becoming more transit, pedestrian, and fiscally friendly. 

 

 

d. Nomination for Executive Committee of the Transportation Research Board – National Academy of 

Sciences 

 

Mr. Ashby Johnson informed the Board that the Executive Director of the Transportation Research Board – 

National Academy of Sciences extended an invitation to him to serve on its Executive Committee. 

 

Mr. Johnson also reported that FHWA released a notice for grant funding opportunities.  CAMPO 

submitted an application for a Mega Regions grant opportunity for freight movement between the San 

Antonio and Austin region.  Mr. Johnson noted that CAMPO would be notified in October if awarded the 

grant.   

 

 Video of items 12b, 12c, and 12d can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/12/.  

http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/4/
http://austintx.swagit.com/play/08152018-914/12/


For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/ 

7 

 

 

13. Announcements 

 

There were no announcements. 

 

14. Adjournment 

 

The Transportation Policy Board Meeting adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 

 



   
Date:                 October 15, 2018  

Continued From: N/A 

    Action Requested:   Information  

 
 

 

  

To: 
 

Transportation Policy Board 

From: Mr. Randy Clarke, President and CEO, Capital Metro  

Agenda Item: 7 

Subject: Update on Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority Cap Remap 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

None.  This item is for informational purposes only.  

 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item provides the Transportation Policy Board with a brief update on Capital Metro’s Cap Remap 

service change and responds to recent comments regarding equity and Title VI. At the August 13, 2018 

Transportation Policy Board meeting, a citizen offered raised concerns regarding Capital Metro and the 

implementation of the Cap Remap service changes, specifically Title VI issues and disparate treatment of 

low-income and minority communities. After further discussion at the dais, it was suggested that Capital 

Metro provide the Transportation Policy Board an update regarding Cap Remap.  

 

The presentation accompanying this item addresses these issues, including a summary of the Federal 

Transit Administration’s review of the matter. A copy of their letter is attached for reference, along with 

the full equity analysis that Capital Metro completed prior to implementation of Cap Remap.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Not applicable. 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Cap Remap Recap slide presentation. 

 
 

 

 

 



 

  

Title VI Equity Analysis - June 2018 

Service Changes Final 11-09-17 
June 2018 Service Changes 

November 2017 
      

Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
Austin, Texas 



1 
 

Table of Contents 

I Executive Summary ..........................................................................................................................  3 

II Proposed Changes by Regions ........................................................................................................  6 

III  Public Involvement ............................................................................................................................ 9 

IV Definitions and Methodology ........................................................................................................ 10 

V Data Analysis Results ...................................................................................................................... 14 

VI Conclusion ......................................................................................................................................... 66 

 

List of Tables 

Table 1 Equity Analysis Results of Current Bus Routes Proposed for Major Changes ................. 16 

Table 2 Equity Analysis Results of Current Bus Routes Proposed for Elimination ....................... 43 

Table 3 Equity Analysis Results of Proposed New Bus Routes ..................................................... 59 

 

List of Figures 

Figure 1 Route 2........................................................................................................................................ 18 

Figure 2 Route 4........................................................................................................................................ 19 

Figure 3 Route 6........................................................................................................................................ 21 

Figure 4 Route 10...................................................................................................................................... 22 

Figure 5 Route 17...................................................................................................................................... 23 

Figure 6 Route 18...................................................................................................................................... 25 

Figure 7 Route 20...................................................................................................................................... 26 

Figure 8 Route 37...................................................................................................................................... 28 

Figure 9 Route 228.................................................................................................................................... 29 

Figure 10 Route 271 .................................................................................................................................. 31 

Figure 11 Route 300 .................................................................................................................................. 32 

Figure 12 Route 311 .................................................................................................................................. 34 



2 
 

List of Figures (cont.) 

Figure 13 Route 323 .................................................................................................................................. 35 

Figure 14 Route 325 .................................................................................................................................. 36 

Figure 15 Route 333 .................................................................................................................................. 37 

Figure 16 Route 392 .................................................................................................................................. 39 

Figure 17 Route 490 .................................................................................................................................. 40 

Figure 18 Route 492 .................................................................................................................................. 41 

Figure 19 Route 21.................................................................................................................................... 45 

Figure 20 Route 22.................................................................................................................................... 46 

Figure 21 Route 100 .................................................................................................................................. 47 

Figure 22 Route 127 .................................................................................................................................. 49 

Figure 23 Route 238 .................................................................................................................................. 50 

Figure 24 Route 240 .................................................................................................................................. 51 

Figure 25 Route 275 .................................................................................................................................. 53 

Figure 26 Route 320 .................................................................................................................................. 54 

Figure 27 Route 331 .................................................................................................................................. 55 

Figure 28 Route 464 .................................................................................................................................. 56 

Figure 29 Route 653 .................................................................................................................................. 57 

Figure 30 Route 105 .................................................................................................................................. 61 

Figure 31 Route 310 .................................................................................................................................. 62 

Figure 32 Route 315 .................................................................................................................................. 63 

Figure 33 Route 324 .................................................................................................................................. 64 

Figure 34 Route 339 .................................................................................................................................. 65 

Appendix 

Appendix A -  Consideration of Public Comments in the Planning Process .................................. 69 

  



3 
 

I. Executive Summary 

 

The Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Capital Metro) continues to evaluate 

closely all services throughout the system to ensure maximum efficiency of resources and the 

riders served.  As part of the implementation of Connections 2025, Capital Metro is proposing 

major service changes effective June 2018. 

Capital Metro is cognizant of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 601 that states: 

“No persons in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national 

origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected 

to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial 

assistance.”1 

Capital Metro’s responsibility is to guarantee that all transit service, and access to its facilities, are 

equitably distributed and provided without regard to race, color, or national origin. Capital 

Metro’s goal is to also ensure equal opportunities to all individuals to participate in all local, sub 

regional and regional transit planning and decision-making processes.   

Overall the proposed service changes will have a positive impact within the system because of 

the level of investment proposed to increase capacity through additional trips on existing 

services.  Capital Metro believes that these proposals do not violate federal mandates.  According 

to the Federal Department of Transportation’s Circular 4702.1 B,  

“[Agencies] shall evaluate significant system-wide service and fare changes and 

proposed improvements at the planning and programming stages to determine 

whether these changes have a discriminatory impact.”2 

The proposed June 2018 service changes are in accordance with Capital Metro’s Service 

Standards and represent an incremental step in implementing Connections 2025.  Connections 

2025 was a plan developed with significant input from the community, riders and members of 

the Board of Directors for Capital Metro to ensure maximum efficiency of the service provided 

to the public (in accordance with adopted Capital Metro Service Standards). 

The goal of Connections 2025 is to create a more frequent, more reliable and better connected 

transit system, and the service changes proposed here would help accomplish that. If approved 

                                                           
1 United States Department of Justice. (1964). Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Web Site: https://www.justice.gov/crt  
2 Federal Transit Administration. (October 1, 2012). Title VI Requirements and Guidelines for FTA Recipients: C 4702.1B. 

Source:  Federal Transit Administration Website: https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/title-vi-

requirements-and-guidelines-federal-transit  

 

 

 

https://www.justice.gov/crt
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/title-vi-requirements-and-guidelines-federal-transit
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/title-vi-requirements-and-guidelines-federal-transit


4 
 

by the Capital Metro board of directors in November, they would affect the whole system. In 

fact, more than half of the current 82 routes would see some level of change, with 38 remaining 

the same. 

The proposed June 2018 changes would make for a simpler bus system that has more direct 

routes without many of the current system's confusing twists and turns through 

neighborhoods. They would also bring much more frequent service. While the plan proposes to 

eliminate 13 current routes, most riders would see similar and likely even better service replace 

their current experience. 

The proposed changes have been going through a public engagement period between 

September and when the board votes on November 15. If approved, the changes would take 

effect Sunday, June 3, 2018. 

This proposal is the result of extensive public input received since the fall of 2015 as part of the 

development of the Connections 2025 Transit Plan. In addition, we will provide further 

opportunities both in person and online for the public to learn about these proposed changes. 

The proposed changes are added resource investments designed to increase ridership for the 

system.  The general themes of the proposed changes are as follows: 

More Frequent 

•14 High-Frequency Routes 

•Departures at least every 15 minutes 

•7 days a week 

More Reliable 

•More direct routing 

•Eliminates route deviations within neighborhoods 

•Easier to understand system 

Better Connected 

•Routes designed to work as a system 

•Decreased waiting time for your next bus 

•Riders able to transfer with more confidence 

 



5 
 

These changes are intended to improve the overall customer experience and are in accordance 

with the FY 2018 budget and Connections 2025.  The following evaluation focuses on changes 

where services will be modified and whether impacts may occur as follows: 

• Assesses the effects of the proposed changes on minority and low-income populations. 

• Assesses the alternatives available for people affected by these changes 

• Determines which, if any of the proposals would have a disproportionately high effect on 

minority and low income riders 

• Describes the actions Capital Metro will take to minimize, mitigate or offset any adverse 

effect of these changes on minority and low income riders 

 

As outlined in the FTA Circular 4702.1B, transit agencies “can implement major service changes 

or reductions that would have disproportionately high and adverse impacts provided that the 

recipient demonstrates that the action meets a substantial need that is in the public interest and 

that alternatives would have more severe adverse effects than the preferred alternative. 

 

  



6 
 

II. Proposed Changes by regions 

 

Central Core 

The major changes in the central core would focus on replacing Routes 21/22 with improved, 

more frequent service on similar corridors. That includes changing the routing and increasing 

frequency on Routes 17 and 18. Service between Lake Austin Blvd. and UT would remain via 

Route 663. New Route 335 would also be added to the High-Frequency Network and run every 

15 minutes, seven days a week. The new Route 322 would take over the 21/22’s routing east of 

IH-35 between the East Cesar Chavez and Cherrywood neighborhoods. Portions of Exposition 

formerly served by Routes 21/22 would be served by Frequent Routes 18 and 335. 

Downtown Austin 

The changes in downtown would focus service on three corridors to simplify routing and keep 

buses moving through the most congested part of Austin. All MetroRapid, MetroFlyer, 

MetroExpress and most Local routes would operate north-south in the transit-priority lanes on 

Guadalupe and Lavaca Streets between Cesar Chavez and 8th St. Routes serving the west side 

of the Capitol Complex and UT would continue along Guadalupe and Lavaca. Routes serving 

the east side of the Capitol would operate east-west on 7th and 8th Streets and north-south 

along Trinity and San Jacinto. There would no longer be service on Congress Ave., Red River 

St., parts of 11th and 12th Streets, and parts of 4th and 5th Streets east of Lavaca. Frequent 

Route 17 would be realigned to operate on Cesar Chavez and serve Seaholm. Route 100 would 

be eliminated and its service taken over by Frequent Route 20.  

Northeast Austin 

The most significant changes include increasing frequency on Route 37 to every 15 minutes 

during peak hours; converting it to a crosstown route serving schools and employment centers 

along Loyola Ln., Cameron Rd., Airport Blvd. and Koenig Ln.; and renumbering it to Route 337. 

Other changes include promoting Routes 18 and 20 to the High-Frequency Network, bringing 

Route 233 into Colony Park and replacing portions of Route 323 with Route 237. Frequent Route 

300 would continue to operate on Springdale Rd. but would transition from Rogge Ln. and 

Berkman Dr. to 51st St. and Cameron. Some roads currently served by Route 323 would be 

served by the proposed Route 339, including Springdale north of 183, Tuscany Way, Exchange 

Dr., Forbes Dr., Cross Park Dr. and Centre Creek Dr. 



7 
 

Central East Austin 

The major changes in Central East Austin would be adding Routes 2, 4, 17, 18 and 20 would to 

the High-Frequency Network, greatly improving east-west transit service. While Route 100 

would go away and the 350 would no longer serve the airport, Frequent Route 20 would extend 

to ABIA. Route 271 would now serve FM 973 instead of frontage roads of toll road 130 and 

continue to serve Grove Blvd.  Route 228 serving the Met Center and VA Clinic would begin at 

Pleasant Valley and Riverside Dr. instead of the South Congress Transit Center. Some portions 

of Ledesma Rd., Lott Ave., Prock Ln. and Sara Dr. (Route 2); Vargas Rd. (Route 4); and Burleson 

Rd., Todd Lane and St. Elmo Rd. (Route 228) would lose service.  

Southeast Austin 

Routes 20, 311 and 333 would see frequency improvements as part of the High-Frequency 

Network, providing 15-minute service, seven days a week. New Route 338 would connect 

Southeast Austin to Westgate Shopping Center via Slaughter Ln. and West Gate Blvd., and new 

Route 310 would provide connections between South Congress Transit Center and ACC 

Riverside. Route 228 service to the VA Clinic would connect to routes at Pleasant Valley and 

Riverside instead of the South Congress Transit Center. Route 331 would be combined with 

Frequent Route 300.  Route 127 would be eliminated, with replacement service available on 

Frequent Route 7. Some portions of Peppertree Pkwy. and Freidrich Ln. (Route 7); Burleson Rd., 

Todd Ln. and St. Elmo Rd. (Route 228); as well as South Pleasant Valley and Onion Crossing 

(Route 333) would lose service. 

Southwest Austin 

Frequency would improve with Routes 10 and 333 joining the High-Frequency Network. New 

Route 105, traveling from UT to Westgate Shopping Center during the morning and evening 

rush hours, would replace the southern part of the current Route 5’s service. The ACC Pinnacle 

campus would be served every 30 minutes by alternating trips on Route 333, as well as by new 

Route 315, which would travel along Ben White between the South Congress Transit Center and 

the Pinnacle campus. Route 30 would end at Westgate Shopping Center rather than the South 

Congress Transit Center. Route 110 would be eliminated, with replacement service available on 

Frequent Route 10. Route 970 would also be eliminated. 

 

 



8 
 

Central North Austin 

Among the big changes in Central North Austin are rerouting portions of Routes 7 and 10 and 

introducing new east-west service. Route 10 would join the High-Frequency Network, 

operating between the Norwood Walmart, the Mueller neighborhood and UT via Cameron Rd., 

Mueller Blvd., 45th St. and Red River St. before heading downtown. Route 5 would run on 

Burnet Rd. and Lamar Blvd. to downtown, rather than traveling through UT. The new Route 

345 would provide east-west service on 45th St. between Hancock Center and Burnet, and 

Frequent Route 7 would begin at Crestview Station rather than the Norwood Walmart. Service 

provided by the current Route 320 between Cameron and MoPac would be replaced by Route 

337 (the renamed Route 37). Current Route 37 riders could access UT and downtown via 

Frequent Routes 10 and 20.  

North Austin 

The changes in North Austin would include Route 392 traveling between Tech Ridge and 

Braker/Burnet.  The Great Hills area would be served by Route 383. Frequent Route 325 would 

operate from Tech Ridge to Metric Blvd. before traveling east-west on Rundberg Lane and 

ending at the Norwood Walmart. Route 1 would take over the current Route 275, staying on 

Lamar to the Tech Ridge Park & Ride instead of running on Rundberg and Metric. The new 

Route 324 would replace portions of the redirected Routes 10 and 325. Some parts of Rutland 

Dr., Gracy Farms Ln. and Cedar Bend Dr. on Route 240 would lose service.  

UT Shuttles 

There are very few changes to the UT Shuttle service. The primary change would be replacing 

Route 653 with Frequent Route 10, which would also provide a frequent connection between 

UT and the Mueller neighborhood. Changes to UT Shuttle service may include minor frequency 

changes as we match service to ridership levels. 

 

  



9 
 

III. Public Involvement 

 

Capital Metro asked for public comments and feedback from our community on these 

proposed significant changes to our transit system network. Throughout the planning process, 

the public had the opportunity to provide their feedback in a number of ways, including email: 

feedback@capmetro.org and Twitter: @CapMetroATX.  The board of directors also heard public 

comments in September and October board meetings.  In addition, there was a workshop in 

October that provided opportunities to board members as well as the public to understand the 

details of this complex proposal for service changes.  Capital Metro also provided more 

opportunities for the public to share input at the following engagement events: 

 

Date & Time Event type Event & Location Served by routes 

Monday, Sept. 25, 5:30-7 p.m. Public meeting Howson Branch Library  21, 22 

Tuesday, Sept. 26, 5:30-7 p.m. Public meeting Pleasant Hill Branch Library 1, 201, 333, 801 

Wednesday, Sept. 27, 5:30-7 p.m. Public meeting Hampton Branch Library  111, 333 

Thursday, Sept. 28, Noon. Webinar Registration  –  

Monday, Oct. 2, 5:30-7 p.m. Public meeting Gus Garcia Recreation Center  10, 325 

Monday, Oct. 2, Noon. Webinar Registration  –  

Wednesday, Nov. 1, Noon - 12:30 p.m. Public hearing 2910 E. 5th St. 17, 300 

Wednesday, Nov. 1, 5:30 p.m. - 6 p.m. Public hearing 2910 E. 5th St. 17, 300 

 

 

 

 

https://twitter.com/CapMetroATX
https://register.gotowebinar.com/register/5269141580354401027
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/3733940773490777603


10 
 

IV. Definitions and Methodology 

 

Before we dive into the details, it is necessary to clarify some technical terms, policies, and 

thresholds that are associated with the Title VI Service Change Equity Analysis.  All major 

service changes will be subject to an equity analysis which includes an analysis of adverse 

effects on minority and low-income populations. 

Minority Populations 

Minority populations were considered according to the FTA circular guidelines and follow 

Capital Metro’s approved 2015 Title VI reporting methodology.  Groups represented by this 

definition include: 

• Black or African American  

• American Indian and Alaska Native  

• Asian  

• Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander  

• Some other race 

• Two or more Races  

• Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 

 

Low-Income Populations 

Low-income persons were considered according to the FTA circular guidelines but are refined 

to reflect Capital Metro’s most recent reporting to the FTA.  Thus, we have identified household 

incomes less than $29,999* as low-income.  The threshold for this is set at 18% which is the 

reported percentage of Low-Income households for Travis County (of which over 95% of 

Capital Metro’s Service Area encompasses). 

*According to the Federal Transit Administration, low income is defined as, a person whose median household income is at or below the 

Department of Health and Human Services’ poverty guidelines.  Capital Metro’s Planning has referenced poverty as 125% of the federal 

definition of poverty for a family of four.  The poverty level for a family of four is $21,200 and if a 125% measure is applied, it would equate to a 

threshold of $26,500.  However because Census Information is collected and reported in $10,000 increments, low income households are 

referenced when reporting less than $29,999. 

   



11 
 

Major Service Change Policy 

Capital Metro considers a service change as a "major service change” if it lasts more than twelve 

months and qualifies for a public hearing.  The June 2018 change is in need of an equity analysis 

under Title VI.  Service changes that require a public hearing are currently defined as: 

• The elimination of an existing bus route; or 

• The establishment of a new bus route; or 

• A substantial geographical alteration on a given route of more than 25% of its route miles; 

or 

• A major modification of a route which causes a 25% or greater change in the number of 

daily service hours provided by that route. 

   

Adverse Effect 

As mentioned in the Title VI Circular 4702.1B, the adverse effect can be measured by the change 

between the existing and proposed service levels that would be deemed significant. Changes in 

service that have an adverse effect and that may result in a disparate impact include reductions in 

service (e.g., elimination of route, shortlining a route, rerouting an existing route, increase in 

headways). Elimination of a route will generally have a greater adverse impact than a change in 

headways.  

Service additions may also create an adverse effect on minority and low-income populations, 

especially if they come at the expense of reductions in service on other routes. Moreover, if the 

benefits of service additions are not distributed equitably, it may also create adverse effects on 

minority and low-income people.  Capital Metro analyzes the degree of adverse effects when 

planning for any major service changes. 

 

+/-2 Threshold 

Under adopted policies consistent with Title VI, Capital Metro considers an adverse effect on minority 

or low-income population due to a major service change, when the difference between the average 



12 
 

minority or low-income population near the affected route and the average service area minority 

threshold (33%) or the average service area low-income threshold (18%) is greater than +/- 2. 

 

Disparate Impact 

Disparate Impact refers to an adverse effect absorbed by minority persons that is considered to 

be significantly disproportionate.  The minority population is the protected class by Title VI.  

The Capital Metro threshold of any major service changes where an impact will be considered 

disparate on a minority population is +/-2 of 33%, which is the average minority population of 

the service area.  For example, if route X is proposed to be eliminated and it has 36% minority 

population near the route (minority population of Census Block Groups within a quarter of a 

mile from either side of the route) then, this route elimination may have a disparate impact on 

minority populations.  On the other hand, if this route X is a proposed new route, this would 

provide more benefit to the minority population and wouldn’t have any disparate impact. 

 

Disproportionate Burden 

Disproportionate Burden refers to an adverse effect absorbed by low-income persons that is 

considered to be significantly disproportionate. The Capital Metro threshold of any major service 

change where an impact will be considered disproportionate on the low-income population is +/-2 

of 18%, which is the average service area low-income population with incomes that fall below 

$29,999 for the household income.  For example, if the route X (mentioned above) has 22% low-

income population near the route (low-income population of Census Block Groups within a quarter 

of a mile from either side of the route, then, this route elimination may create a disproportionate 

burden on the low-income population.  On the other hand, if this route X is a proposed new route, 

this would provide more benefit to the low-income population and wouldn’t have any 

disproportionate burden. 

 

 

 



13 
 

Data Source 

We used the 2010 census data to find minority population (total population minus non-

Hispanic white) for this analysis. We used the Block Group (BG) level data as it is the preferred 

level to count minority population in close proximity to a route. However, the 2010 Census 

does not include the income data and it is only available through the American Community 

Survey (ACS). So, we used the latest 2015 ACS data to find low-income population 

surrounding routes.  But, we were not able to use ACS data for minority population because it 

doesn’t provide the racial breakdown needed for the analysis.  

Using the Geographic Information Systems (GIS), we created a ¼ mile buffer on both sides of a 

route and captured the minority as well as low income population within the buffer area.  

Then, we identified the routes that didn’t pass the test for Disparate Impact (33%) or 

Disproportionate Burden (18%).  Based on the results of analysis, we identified 35 of 40 routes 

that were proposed for major service changes that may experience some kind of adverse 

effects.  All of these potentially adverse effects are on the minority population where the 

average minority population of those routes are more than 35%. However, we have found no 

disproportionate burden on low-income populations for all eliminated and modified routes. 

We applied the three basic steps “Avoid, Minimize, and Mitigate” to all routes that failed the 

test for Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden (DIDB).  In order to complete the equity 

analysis, we considered all comments and suggestions gathered through public hearings, 

meetings, and other sources, and examined and analyzed the following elements before 

proposing a route for any major changes: 

1. Identified minority block groups that are no longer served by the affected route  

(i.e., negative impact of route change) 

2. Identified additional (new) minority block groups that are served by the affected route  

(i.e., positive impact of route change) 

3. Identified mitigation route(s)  

4. Identified ½ mile walk shed around eliminated, proposed, and mitigation routes. 

  



14 
 

V. Data Analysis Results 

 

The following discusses the results of the Title VI Equity Analysis on the proposed Capital 

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Capital Metro) bus service changes associated with the 

Connections 2025 transit plan to be implemented in June 2018. 

The proposed June 2018 service changes will implement most of the High-Frequency Network 

from the approved Connections 2025 transit plan. These changes will result in a large overhaul 

of Capital Metro’s bus network, with only 38 of 82 routes remaining unchanged. In addition, 

thirteen routes are proposed to be eliminated. 

Table 1 provides the results of the equity analysis for the current bus routes with a greater than 

25% change in geographic coverage or service characteristics that constitutes a major service 

change, the definition of which is required by FTA, and defined by Capital Metro; Table 2 

provides the results for current bus routes that are planned for elimination; and, Table 3 

provides results for new proposed bus routes planned for implementation in June 2018. In 

addition to the tabular results of the equity analysis, maps of each of the potential equity routes 

have been included in this memo that show the subject potential equity routes that require 

further mitigation analysis, followed by a discussion of mitigation is below each map, where 

necessary.  

Each of the tables contain 13 columns providing various route and demographic data necessary 

to determine if the subject routes are potential equity routes. All population and race data is 

from the 2010 U.S. Census, while the low-income/poverty data is from the 2015 American 

Community Survey. The specific table headings are defined below: 

• Route Number – These are the specific bus route numbers established by Capital Metro 

and included on all Capital Metro maps and schedules. 

• Route BGs Total Population – This is the total population of all block groups located 

within a one-quarter mile buffer on either side of each subject bus route alignment.  

• Route BGs Minority Population – This is a calculation subtracting the total non-

Hispanic White population for all of the block groups from “Route BGs Total 

Population”. 

• Route BGs % Minority – This is a calculation dividing “Route BGs Minority 

Population” by “Route BGs Total Population”. 

• Service Area Percent Minority – This is used by Capital Metro as the baseline 

percentage to determine disparate impacts.  

• Route % Minority Minus Service Area % Minority – This is a calculation subtracting 

the route percent minority from the service area percent minority to determine the delta. 



15 
 

If this is a positive number and is greater than two percent (i.e., the disparate impact 

threshold established in the Capital Metro policies) then a disparate impact has been 

identified. 

• Potential Minority Impact – This is a “yes” or “no” answer based on if the “greater than 

two percent threshold” was reached; routes marked “yes” means those routes have been 

identified as potential equity routes. 

• Route BGs Poverty Households – This is the total number of households within the 

poverty threshold established in the Capital Metro disproportionate impacts policy (125 

percent of the Department of Health and Human Services 2015 poverty threshold) for all 

of the block groups located within a one-quarter mile buffer on either side of each 

subject bus route alignment.    

• Route BGs Total Households – This is the total number households for all of the block 

groups located within a one-quarter mile buffer on either side of each subject bus route 

alignment.   

• Route BGs % Low Income –  This is a simple calculation dividing the number of “Route 

BGs Poverty Households” by the number of “Route BGs Total Households”. 

• Service Area Percent Low Income –  This is the overall percentage of low-income 

households located within the Capital Metro Service Area and is used as the baseline 

percentage to determine disproportionate impacts. 

• Route % Low Income Minus Service Area % Income –  This is a calculation subtracting 

the route percent low-income from the service area percent low-income to determine the 

difference. If this is a positive number and is greater than two percent (the 

disproportionate impact threshold established in the Capital Metro policies) then a 

disproportionate impact has been identified. 

• Potential Low-Income Impact – This is a “yes” or “no” answer based on if the “greater 

than two percent” threshold was reached; routes marked “yes” means those routes have 

been identified as potential equity routes. 

The subject equity analysis conforms to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Federal 

Transit Administration (FTA) Revised Title VI Circular 4702.1B as well as Capital Metro’s Title 

VI Disparate and Disproportionate Impact Policies.   

 

 



16 
 

Table 1 below shows the results for the specific bus routes that are planned for major changes as part of the implementation of the 

Connections 2025 service changes. 

Table 1: Equity Analysis Results of Current Bus Routes Proposed for Major Changes 

Source:  HNTB, October 2017. 

Route 

Number 

Route BGs 

Total 

Population 

Route BGs 

Minority 

Population 

Route 

BGs % 

Minority 

Service 

Area % 

Minority 

Route % 

Minority 

Minus 

Service 

Area % 

Minority 

Potential 

Minority 

Impact 

Route BGs 

Poverty 

Households 

Route BGs 

Total 

Households 

Route 

BGs % 

Low 

Income 

Service 

Area % 

Low 

Income 

Route 

% Low 

Income 

Minus 

Service 

Area % 

Income 

Potential 

Low 

Income 

Impact 

2 33,608 20,927 62.27 33 29.27 Yes 1,310 16,411 7.98 18 -10.02 No 

4 50,223 32,600 64.91 33 31.91 Yes 2,271 23,223 9.78 18 -8.22 No 

5 105,689 36,509 34.54 33 1.54 No 1,676 50,167 3.34 18 -14.66 No 

6 32,789 20,132 61.40 33 28.40 Yes 1,323 15,960 8.29 18 -9.71 No 

10 133,114 75,062 56.39 33 23.39 Yes 4,276 58,702 7.28 18 -10.72 No 

17 30,044 17,999 59.91 33 26.91 Yes 933 14,196 6.57 18 -11.43 No 

18 54,381 25,065 46.09 33 13.09 Yes 970 20,967 4.63 18 -13.37 No 

20 84,417 51,620 61.15 33 28.15 Yes 3,337 37,336 8.94 18 -9.06 No 

37 77,023 47,639 61.85 33 28.85 Yes 3,077 30,208 10.19 18 -7.81 No 

228 36,064 26,387 73.17 33 40.17 Yes 1,874 14,127 13.27 18 -4.73 No 

271 43,074 34,830 80.86 33 47.86 Yes 2,396 15,145 15.82 18 -2.18 No 

300 113,417 84,047 74.10 33 41.10 Yes 6,323 47,909 13.20 18 -4.80 No 

311 69,096 48,930 70.81 33 37.81 Yes 3,548 27,503 12.90 18 -5.10 No 

323 67,677 51,420 75.98 33 42.98 Yes 4,279 27,792 15.40 18 -2.60 No 

325 59,650 43,691 73.25 33 40.25 Yes 3,364 24,410 13.78 18 -4.22 No 

333 95,962 51,857 54.04 33 21.04 Yes 2,599 38,942 6.67 18 -11.33 No 

392 48,863 28,675 58.68 33 25.68 Yes 1,229 22,601 5.44 18 -12.56 No 

490 40,933 26,494 64.73 33 31.73 Yes 1,411 20,007 7.05 18 -10.95 No 

491 25,578 5,022 19.63 33 -32.80 No 248 13,609 1.82 18 -16.18 No 

492 41,482 27,186 65.54 33 32.54 Yes 2,256 17,937 12.58 18 -5.42 No 



17 
 

As shown in Table 1, there are 20 bus routes in the Connections 2025 service change plan that 

meet the “greater than 25 percent” change in geographic coverage or service characteristics 

threshold, meaning an equity analysis is required for all of those routes to determine potential 

disparate or disproportionate impacts to minority and low-income populations. Looking at the 

results presented in Table 1, of those 20 routes, 18 of the routes (those with red highlighted text) 

are considered “potential equity routes” meaning that the routes exceeded the “greater than 

two percent” threshold established in Capital Metro’s disparate and disproportionate impacts 

policies. All 18 of the potential equity routes are considered such because of potential impacts to 

minorities as there are no low-income impacts that exceed the two percent threshold. For each 

of these potential equity routes specific mitigation is available, most commonly in the form of 

continued transit access from the proposed route and/or transit access from other existing or 

proposed bus routes within a one-half mile walk shed of the current bus route. Maps of each of 

the potential equity routes listed in Table 1 are provided below and are followed by a 

mitigation discussion for each.



18 
 

Figure 1: Capital Metro Bus Route 2 

 

As shown in Figure 1, the proposed Route 2 would deviate from the current Route 2 on the east 

and west ends of the route. In terms of potential impacts to minority populations, there are 10 

bus stops served by the current route that would no longer be served by the proposed route that 

are located within a minority block group. These stops are located on Ledesma Road, Lott Ave, 

Prock Lane, and Sara Drive. However, these eliminated stops are all located within a one-half 



19 
 

mile walk of the proposed Route 2 and the proposed Route 300, so frequent3 bus transit service 

would be maintained to these areas, with both proposed Routes 2 and 300 serving as a viable 

mitigation route for these 10 eliminated stops. Additionally, frequency on the Route 2 would be 

increased from 20-30 minutes to 15 minutes, resulting in better access from a service 

characteristics standpoint on this proposed route. 

Figure 2: Capital Metro Bus Route 4 

 

                                                           
3 Frequent or high-frequency service is service that operates at least every 15 minutes from 6:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m. on 

weekdays and every 15 minutes from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. on weekends 



20 
 

As shown in Figure 2, the proposed Route 4 would deviate from the current Route 4 

predominantly by being truncated on both the east and west ends of the route, specifically 

along Vargas Road on the east and ending just before MoPac on the west. In terms of potential 

impacts to minority populations, there are ten minority block groups served by the current 

route that would no longer be served by the proposed route – nine of these minority block 

groups are located on the east end of the route and one is located on the west end. However, all 

ten minority block groups would be served by proposed frequent Route 17, with all of these 

minority block groups located within a one-half mile walk of the proposed frequent Route 17, 

so bus transit service would be maintained to these areas. Additionally, frequency on the Route 

4 would be increased from 30 minutes to 15 minutes, resulting in better access from a service 

characteristics standpoint on this proposed route. 



21 
 

Figure 3: Capital Metro Bus Route 6

 
As shown in Figure 3, the proposed Route 6 would follow the same alignment as the current 

Route 6, with only minor deviations on the west end of the route in Downtown Austin and on 

the east end of the route.  In terms of potential impacts to minority populations, there are three 

stops located in a minority block groups on the east end of the route at Eleanor, Hudson, and 

Delano Streets that are served by the current route that would no longer be served by the 

proposed route. However, these three stops would still be served by proposed Route 6 as all 

three stops are located within approximately one-quarter mile of the closest proposed Route 6 

stops. Additionally, frequency on the Route 6 would be increased from every 40 to every 30 



22 
 

minutes resulting in better access from a service characteristics standpoint on this proposed 

route. 

Figure 4: Capital Metro Bus Route 10 

 

As shown in Figure 4, the proposed Route 10 would follow the current Route 10 alignment on 

the southern half of the route but would deviate from the current route on the northern half by 

shifting service to the east side of IH-35 from the west side of IH-35. In terms of potential 

impacts to minority populations, there are 22 minority block groups that are served by the 

current route that would no longer be served by the proposed route. However, 16 of the 20 



23 
 

block groups would be served directly by the proposed new service Route 324 on Georgian 

Drive and the remaining four minority block groups located at the far northeast end of the route 

would be served by proposed frequent Route 325. Moreover, 15 additional minority block 

groups would be accessed by the proposed Route 10 on the east side of IH-35 that are not 

served by the current Route 10.  Additionally, service frequency would increase from every 30 

minutes to every 15 minutes along proposed Route 10, resulting in better access from a service 

characteristics standpoint on this proposed route. 

Figure 5: Capital Metro Bus Route 17 

 



24 
 

As shown in Figure 5, the proposed Route 17 would deviate from the current Route 17 by 

shifting service further south on the east and west ends of the route. In terms of potential 

impacts to minority populations, there are five minority block groups that are served by the 

current route that would no longer be served by the proposed route. However, these block 

groups are located within a one-half mile walk of proposed Route 4 and existing Route 350, so 

bus service would still be accessible to people living within these block groups. Additionally, 

service frequency would increase from every 30 minutes to every 15 minutes along proposed 

Route 4, resulting in better access from a service characteristics standpoint on this proposed 

route. 

In addition to the two minority block groups discussed above, there are four bus stops along 

Gardner, Lotus, and Arthur Stiles served by the current route on the east end of the alignment 

that would no longer be served by the proposed route that are located within a minority block 

group. While the proposed Route 17 would still serve this block group, these four existing bus 

stops that would be eliminated are located more than a one-half mile walk from the proposed 

Route 17 and the existing Route 350.  There is an average of 43 weekday boardings at these 

stops.  A proposed school trip to Eastside Memorial College Prep H.S. on Route 4 would serve 

approximately 15 of these weekday boardings. 

  



25 
 

Figure 6: Capital Metro Bus Route 18 

 

As shown in Figure 6, the proposed Route 18 would follow the same alignment as the current 

Route 18, with only minor deviations to the route through Downtown Austin.  In terms of 

potential impacts to minority populations, there is one stop located in a minority block group 

on 21st Street that is served by the current route but would no longer be served by the proposed 

route. However, this stop is located within approximately 0.2 mile of proposed rerouted Route 

18. Additionally, frequency on Route 18 would be increased from every 30 minutes to every 15 



26 
 

minutes resulting in better access from a service characteristics standpoint on this proposed 

route. 

Figure 7: Capital Metro Bus Route 20 

 

As shown in Figure 7, the proposed Route 20 would deviate from the current Route 20 in few 

areas along the route, including discontinuation of service on Grove Boulevard, South Pleasant 

Valley Road, Wickersham Drive, and Trinity Street/San Jacinto Boulevard. The proposed Route 

20 would also be extended and provide direct service to Austin Bergstrom International Airport 



27 
 

(ABIA). In terms of potential impacts to minority populations, there are five minority block 

groups (two immediately south of East Oltorf Street and three in East Austin immediately east 

of IH-35 and immediately adjacent to downtown Austin) that are served by the current route 

but would no longer be served by the proposed route. However, the two minority block groups 

south of East Oltorf Street would be served by Route 310 which follows the same route as the 

current Route 20 in this area and the three block groups in East Austin are located within a one-

half mile from the proposed Route 10 and would be served by this route.  Moreover, proposed 

Route 20 provides benefits to additional minority block groups not served by the current Route 

20 as the proposed route would provide access to four minority block groups located on the 

southeast end of the route near ABIA that are not served by the current Route 20. Additionally, 

service frequency would increase from every 20 minutes to every 15 minutes along proposed 

Route 20, resulting in better access from a service characteristics standpoint on this proposed 

route. 

  



28 
 

Figure 8: Capital Metro Bus Route 37 

 

As shown in Figure 8, the current Route 37 would be renamed to Route 337 and the proposed 

Route 337 would be reconfigured to provide east/west service with a discontinuation of service 

along the southern leg of current Route 37 south of Clayton Lane/Briarcliff Boulevard. In terms 

of potential impacts to minority populations, there are 11 minority block groups (one in the 

northeast segment of the current alignment and 10 along the discontinued southern leg) that are 

served by the current route but would no longer be served by the proposed route. However, all 

of these minority block groups are within a one-half mile walk of proposed frequent Routes 10 



29 
 

and 300 and local Route 233. Therefore, these block groups would continue to be served by bus 

transit service after implementation of the proposed Route 337. Additionally, proposed Route 

337 would benefit eight new minority block groups located on the northwest end of the route 

that are not served by the current Route 37.  

Figure 9: Capital Metro Bus Route 228 

 

As shown in Figure 9, the proposed Route 228 would deviate from the current Route 228 west 

of Stassney Lane by shifting service to the north towards downtown instead of continuing west 

parallel to SH 71 to South Congress Transit Center. In terms of potential impacts to minority 



30 
 

populations as a result of this shift, there are nine minority block groups that are served by the 

current route that would no longer be served by the proposed route. However, these block 

groups are located within a one-half mile walk of new proposed Routes 310 and 315 and 

existing frequent Route 7, so bus service would still be accessible to people living within these 

block groups. Additionally, there are five bus stops served by the current route that would no 

longer be served by the proposed route that are located in minority block groups and are more 

than a one-half mile walk from the mitigation Routes 310 and 315 and existing frequent Route 7. 

These bus stops are located on Burleson Rd, east of Todd Lane. There is an average of 29 

weekday boardings at these 5 bus stops. There would be positive impacts to minority block 

groups as a result of the implementation of proposed Route 228 as seven additional minority 

block groups would gain service from the proposed route. 

  



31 
 

Figure 10: Capital Metro Bus Route 271 

 

As shown in Figure 10, the proposed Route 271 would deviate from the current Route 271  on 

both the east and west ends of the route, specifically with Route 271 no longer serving the ACC 

Riverside campus on the west end of the route. In terms of potential impacts to minority 

populations, there is one minority block groups served by the current route that would no 

longer be served by the proposed route as a result of the discontinuation of service to ACC 

Riverside via proposed Route 271. However, ACC Riverside and the minority block group in 

which it is contained would be served by the proposed Routes 310 and 350, so bus service 

would be maintained to the campus and the minority block group. Additionally, the current 

Route 271 does not stop east of Cheviot as the route travels along the SH-71 and SH-130 



32 
 

frontage roads; so, while there appears to be an area along these two highway facilities that is 

served by the current route and not by the proposed route, there are no stops along this 

segment of the route, so there are no stops lost with the route shift in this area. 

 

Figure 11: Capital Metro Bus Route 300 

 

As shown in Figure 11, the proposed Route 300 would deviate from the current Route 300 

predominantly on the north and south ends of the alignment. In terms of potential impacts to 

minority populations as a result of this deviation, there are 17 minority block groups that are 



33 
 

served by the current route that would no longer be served by the proposed route. However, 

these block groups are all located within a one-half mile walk of proposed Routes 1, 10 and 20 

and new proposed Route 310, so frequent bus service would still be accessible to people living 

within these block groups. Additionally, service frequency would increase from every 30 

minutes to every 15 minutes on proposed Routes 10 and from every 20 minutes to every 15 

minutes on proposed 20, resulting in an increase in transit access from a service characteristics 

standpoint along these routes. The proposed Route 300 would also benefit seven new minority 

block groups on the southwest end of the proposed route that are not served by the current 

Route 300. 



34 
 

Figure 12: Capital Metro Bus Route 311

 
As shown in Figure 12, the proposed Route 311 would follow the same route as the current 

Route 311, with the only difference being the addition of four new bus stops on the west end of 

the route. The major change associated with proposed Route 311 is an increase in frequency 

from every 35 minutes to every 15 minutes. Therefore, the proposed route change would only 



35 
 

result in positive impacts to minority populations along the route due to the increased service 

frequency. 

Figure 13: Capital Metro Bus Route 323 

 

As shown in Figure 13, the proposed Route 323 would follow the same route as the current 

Route 323 on the northwest end of the route but would be truncated at Rutherford Lane just 

east of IH-35 with service being discontinued east of this point. In terms of potential impacts to 

minority populations, there are 17 minority block groups along the discontinued eastern 

portion of the current Route 323 alignment that would no longer be served by the proposed 



36 
 

route. However, all the existing stops in these minority block groups will be served by the 

proposed Route 339.  

Figure 14: Capital Metro Bus Route 325 

 

As shown in Figure 14, the proposed Route 325 would follow the same route as the current 

Route 325 on the southeast end of the route but would then deviate at West Rundberg Lane and 

North Gate Boulevard and instead of turning south on North Gate Boulevard, the proposed 

Route 325 would continue west and then turn north on Metric Boulevard and continue north to 



37 
 

Howard Lane Boulevard ending at Tech Ridge Park and Ride. In terms of potential impacts to 

minority populations, there are five minority block groups along the discontinued southwestern 

portion of the current Route 325 alignment that would no longer be served by the proposed 

route. However, all of these minority block groups would be served by the new proposed Route 

324, which would follow the discontinued southwestern leg of the current Route 325 and serve 

the same population. Therefore, these block groups would continue to be served by bus service 

after implementation of proposed Route 325. Moreover, 15 additional minority block groups 

would be served by the proposed Route 325 along the northern leg of the proposed route which 

are not served by the current route. 

Figure 15: Capital Metro Bus Route 333 

 



38 
 

As shown in Figure 15, the proposed Route 333 would follow the current Route 333 alignment 

for a majority of the route with routing differences on the west end of the routes. While the 

current Route 333 continues up SH-71 past Oak Hill Shopping Center and beyond, the proposed 

Route 333 would continue along Convict Hill Road to ACC Pinnacle. In terms of potential 

impacts to minority populations, there is one minority block group and the Oak Hill Shopping 

Center that is served by the current route on the far west end of the route that would no longer 

be served by the proposed route. However, proposed Route 315 would serve as a mitigation 

route and provide access to Oak Hill Shopping Center and a portion of the subject minority 

block group. There is one stop at Travis Count Precinct 3 offices that would no longer have 

service and would be more than a half-mile walk from Oak Hill Shopping Center.  There is an 

average of 2 weekday boardings at this bus stop.  Additionally, service frequency along a 

majority of the route would increase from every 30 minutes to every 15 minutes along proposed 

Route 333, resulting in better access from a service characteristics standpoint on this proposed 

route. 

  



39 
 

Figure 16: Capital Metro Bus Route 392 

 

As shown in Figure 16, the proposed Route 392 would follow the current Route 392 alignment 

for a majority of the route with the major routing difference being a truncation of the route west 

of West Braker Lane and Burnet Road. In terms of potential impacts to minority populations, 

there are two minority block groups that are served by the current route on the far west end of 

the route that would no longer be served by the proposed route. However, Route 383 would 

serve as a mitigation route and provide access to these block groups as Route 383 follows the 

same route as the current Route 392 in this area.  



40 
 

Figure 17: Capital Metro Bus Route 490 

 

As shown in Figure 17, proposed Route 490 would follow the same route as the current Route 

490 with the change being a reduction of service from four days a week to one day a week. 

There would be no potential impacts to minority populations as a result of implementation of 

the proposed Route 490 as all of the same minority block groups would be served by the 

proposed route as are served by the current route. Despite a reduction in service levels, service 



41 
 

frequency would be maintained due to mitigation Routes 17 and 322 providing service to the 

minority block groups. 

Figure 18: Capital Metro Bus Route 492 

 

As shown in Figure 18, proposed Route 492 would follow the same route as the current Route 

492 with the change being a reduction of service from three days a week to one day a week. 

There would be no potential impacts to minority block groups as a result of implementation of 



42 
 

the proposed Route 492 as all of the same minority block groups would be served by the 

proposed route as are served by the current route. Despite a reduction in service levels, service 

frequency would be maintained due to mitigation Routes 10 and 300 providing frequent service 

to the minority block groups.



43 
 

Table 2 below shows the results for the specific bus routes that are planned for elimination as part of the implementation of the 

Connections 2025 service changes.  

Table 2: Equity Analysis Results of Current Bus Routes Proposed for Elimination 

Route 

Numbe

r 

Route 

BGs Total 

Populatio

n 

Route 

BGs 

Minority 

Populatio

n 

Route 

BGs % 

Minorit

y 

Service 

Area % 

Minorit

y 

Route % 

Minority 

Minus 

Service 

Area % 

Minority 

Potential 

Minority 

Impact 

Route BGs 

Poverty 

Household

s 

Route BGs 

Total 

Household

s 

Route 

BGs % 

Low 

Incom

e 

Service 

Area % 

Low 

Income 

Route 

% Low 

Income 

Minus 

Service 

Area % 

Income 

Potentia

l Low 

Income 

Impact 

21 84,454 33,248 39.37 33 6.37 Yes 1,452 34,995 4.15 18 -13.85 No 

22 85,419 33,485 39.20 33 6.20 Yes 1,452 35,651 4.07 18 -13.93 No 

100 70,448 44,933 63.78 33 30.78 Yes 2,851 28,316 10.07 18 -7.93 No 

122 121,466 36,271 29.86 33 -3.14 No 1,211 54,761 2.21 18 -15.79 No 

127 82,194 50,227 61.11 33 28.11 Yes 2,607 31,629 8.24 18 -9.76 No 

238 43,931 17,546 39.94 33 6.94 Yes 772 21,196 3.64 18 -14.36 No 

240 63,863 44,734 70.05 33 37.05 Yes 3,244 27,006 12.01 18 -5.99 No 

275 55,255 40,537 73.36 33 40.36 Yes 2,927 22,401 13.07 18 -4.93 No 

320 105,976 61,905 58.41 33 25.41 Yes 4,113 49,491 8.31 18 -9.69 No 

331 66,922 38,659 57.77 33 24.77 Yes 2,979 31,689 9.40 18 -8.60 No 

464 23,865 11,713 49.08 33 16.08 Yes 215 6,944 3.10 18 -14.90 No 

653 23,281 9,239 39.68 33 6.68 Yes 288 6,870 4.19 18 -13.81 No 

970 48,344 13,050 26.99 33 -6.01 No 428 25,812 1.66 18 -16.34 No 

Source: HNTB, October 2017. 

 



44 
 

As shown in Table 2, there are 13 bus routes planned for elimination in the Connections 2025 

transit plan, meaning an equity analysis is required for these routes to determine potential 

disparate or disproportionate impacts to minority and low-income populations. Looking at the 

results presented in Table 2, of those 13 routes, 11 of the routes (those with red highlighted text) 

are considered “potential equity routes” meaning that the routes exceeded the “greater than 

two percent” threshold established in Capital Metro’s disparate and disproportionate impacts 

policies. All 11 of the potential equity routes are considered such because of potential impacts to 

minorities as there are no low-income impacts that exceed the two percent threshold. For each 

of these potential equity routes, specific mitigation is available, most commonly in the form of 

transit access from other existing or proposed bus routes within a one-half mile walk shed of the 

current bus route. Maps of each of the potential equity routes listed in Table 2 are provided 

below and are followed by a mitigation discussion for each. 

  



45 
 

Figure 19: Capital Metro Bus Route 21 (Planned for Elimination) 

 

As shown in Figure 19, Route 21 would be eliminated as part of the Connections 2025 service 

changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing Route 21 currently provides service to 30 

minority block groups. However, all 30 of these block groups are all located within a one-half 

mile walk or less of proposed Routes 17, 18, 20, 322 and 335 and existing Routes 1 and 663, so 

frequent bus service would still be accessible to people living within these block groups. 

Additionally, service frequency would increase from every 30 minutes to every 15 minutes 

along proposed Routes 18 and from every 20 minutes to every 15 minutes on proposed Route 



46 
 

20.  Finally, proposed Route 335 would be a new service route resulting in all three of these 

proposed routes providing better access from a service characteristics standpoint in this area.  

Figure 20: Capital Metro Bus Route 22 (Planned for Elimination) 

 

As shown in Figure 20, Route 22 would be eliminated as part of the Connections 2025 service 

changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing Route 22 currently provides service to 30 

minority block groups. However, all 30 of these block groups are all located within a one-half 

mile walk or less of proposed Routes 17, 18, 20, 322, and 335 and existing Routes 1and 663, so 

frequent bus service would still be accessible to people living within these block groups. 



47 
 

Additionally, service frequency would increase from every 30 minutes to every 15 minutes 

along proposed Routes 18 and from every 20 minutes to every 15 minutes on proposed Route 

20.  Finally, proposed Route 335 would be a new service route resulting in all three of these 

proposed routes providing better access from a service characteristics standpoint in this area. 

Figure 21: Capital Metro Bus Route 100 (Planned for Elimination) 

 

As shown in Figure 21, Route 100 would be eliminated as part of the Connections 2025 service 

changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing Route 100 currently provides service to 32 

minority block groups. However, 29 of the 32 block groups are located within a one-half mile 

walk or less of proposed Routes 20 which follows the majority of the current Route 100, so 



48 
 

frequent bus service would still be accessible to people living within these block groups. The 

three block groups accessed by the current Route 100 but not the mitigation Route 20 are all 

located immediately east of IH-35, just east of Downtown Austin in East Austin. These block 

groups are served by proposed Route 322.  Additionally, service frequency would increase from 

every 20 minutes to every 15 minutes along proposed Route 20.  Service from airport would 

improve from every 30 minutes to every 15 minutes.  This results in the proposed route 

providing better access from a service characteristics standpoint in this area. 

  



49 
 

Figure 22: Capital Metro Bus Route 127 (Planned for Elimination) 

 

As shown in Figure 22, Route 127 would be eliminated as part of the Connections 2025 service 

changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing Route 127 currently provides service to 36 

minority block groups. However, all of these block groups are located within a one-half mile 

walk or less of existing Route 7 which parallels the majority of the current Route 127, so 

frequent bus service to downtown would still be accessible to people living within these block 

groups.  

  



50 
 

Figure 23: Capital Metro Bus Route 238 (Planned for Elimination) 

 

As shown in Figure 23, Route 238 would be eliminated as part of the Connections 2025 service 

changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing Route 238 currently provides service to 19 

minority block groups. However, all of these block groups would be directly served by the 

proposed Route 338 as this route would follow the same corridor as current Route 238 for the 

central portion of the route, so bus service would still be accessible to people living within these 

block groups. 

  



51 
 

Figure 24: Capital Metro Bus Route 240 (Planned for Elimination) 

 

As shown in Figure 24, Route 240 would be eliminated as part of the Connections 2025 service 

changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing Route 240 currently provides service to 33 

minority block groups. However, all 33 of these block groups are all located within a one-half 

mile walk of proposed Routes 325 and existing Routes 1, 3, and 803, so frequent bus service 

would still be accessible to people living within these block groups. On the north end of the 



52 
 

route, there are five bus stops served by the current route that would no longer be served that 

are within minority block groups and are not within a one-half mile walk of the mitigation 

Routes 325, 801, or 803. Two of these stops are located right on the edge of the one-half mile 

walk shed while the other three stops are all approximately a 0.7 mile walk to the proposed 

Route 325.  These five stops have a total of 93 average weekday boardings with over two-thirds 

of the boardings at HEB at Parmer and MoPac.  Due to the challenging street network in this 

area, it would be costly to modify other routes to serve this area. 



53 
 

Figure 25: Capital Metro Bus Route 275 (Planned for Elimination)

 
As shown in Figure 25, Route 275 would be eliminated as part of the Connections 2025 service 

changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing Route 275 currently provides service to 29 

minority block groups. However, all of these block groups would be directly served by 

proposed Route 1 as this route follows the same corridor as current Route 275, so bus service 

would still be accessible to people living within these block groups. 



54 
 

Figure 26: Capital Metro Bus Route 320 (Planned for Elimination) 

 

As shown in Figure 26, Route 320 would be eliminated as part of the Connections 2025 service 

changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing Route 320 currently provides service to 60 

minority block groups. However, all of these block groups are within a one-half mile walk of 

mitigation routes 7, 19, and proposed mitigation routes 17, 300, 322, 335, 337, 345, so bus service 

would still be accessible to people living within these block groups.  

 



55 
 

Figure 27: Capital Metro Bus Route 331 (Planned for Elimination) 

 

As shown in Figure 27, Route 331 would be combined with proposed High Frequent Route 300 

as part of the Connections 2025 service changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing 

Route 331 currently provides service to 31 minority block groups. However, all of these block 

groups would be directly served by mitigation Routes 228, 300, and 311 as these routes serve the 

same corridor as current Route 331, so bus service would still be accessible to people living 

within these block groups. Additionally, service frequency on Route 311 would increase from 



56 
 

every 30 minutes to every 15 minutes, so proposed Route 311 would provide better access from 

a service characteristics standpoint in this area as well. 

Figure 28: Capital Metro Bus Route 464 (Planned for Elimination) 

 

As shown in Figure 28, Route 464 would be eliminated as part of the Connections 2025 service 

changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing Route 464 connects the MLK Redline 

station to the Capitol Complex and currently provides service to 10 minority block groups. 

However, all of these block groups would be directly served by mitigation Route 18 as this 

route serves the same corridor as current Route 464, so frequent bus service would still be 

accessible to people living within these block groups. Additionally, service frequency on Route 



57 
 

18 would increase from every 30 minutes to every 15 minutes, so proposed Route 18 would 

provide better access from a service characteristics standpoint in this area as well. 

Figure 29: Capital Metro Bus Route 653 (Planned for Elimination) 

 

As shown in Figure 29, Route 653 would be eliminated as part of the Connections 2025 service 

changes to be implemented in June 2018. The existing Route 653 is a UT Shuttle route 

connecting students to campus and currently provides service to six minority block groups. 

However, all of these block groups would be directly served by proposed Route 10 as this route 

serves the same corridor as current Route 653, so frequent bus service would still be accessible 



58 
 

to people living within these block groups. Additionally, service frequency on Route 10 would 

increase from every 30 minutes to every 15 minutes, so proposed Route 10 would provide better 

access from a service characteristics standpoint in this area as well. 



59 
 

Table 3 below provides results for new proposed bus routes planned for implementation in June 2018. 

Table 3: Equity Analysis Results of Proposed New Bus Routes 

Route 

Number 

Route BGs 

Total 

Population 

Route BGs 

Minority 

Population 

Route 

BGs % 

Minority 

Service 

Area % 

Minority 

Route % 

Minority 

Minus 

Service 

Area % 

Minority 

Potential 

Minority 

Impact 

Route BGs 

Poverty 

Households 

Route BGs 

Total 

Households 

Route 

BGs % 

Low 

Income 

Service 

Area % 

Low 

Income 

Route 

% Low 

Income 

Minus 

Service 

Area % 

Income 

Potential 

Low 

Income 

Impact 

105 61,426 23,556 38.35 33 5.35 No 963 26,198 3.68 18 -14.32 Yes 

310 45,033 32,370 71.88 33 38.88 No 2,368 20,008 11.84 18 -6.16 Yes 

315 47,719 19,201 40.24 33 7.24 No 978 22,601 4.33 18 -13.67 Yes 

324 58,445 40,081 68.58 33 35.58 No 3,289 24,460 13.45 18 -4.55 Yes 

335 35,510 10,413 29.32 33 -3.68 Yes 662 17,109 3.87 18 -14.13 Yes 

339 40,272 33,738 83.78 33 50.78 No 2,547 15,702 16.22 18 -1.78 No 

345 19,671 5,200 26.43 33 -6.57 Yes 268 10,405 2.58 18 -15.42 Yes 

Source: HNTB, October 2017. 



60 
 

As shown in Table 3 there are seven new bus routes proposed for implementation as part of the 

Connections 2025 service changes. Five of these routes will provide additional services to high 

minority areas (as shown on Figures 30-34) while Routes 335 and 345 will provide services to 

minority populations that are just below the threshold of 33%.  Ultimately, all of these routes 

will bring significant benefits to minority populations since a very high minority population 

will have access to these new routes.  Although these routes will travel through minority areas, 

they may not cover very high low-income areas.  So, we may see a lower degree of adverse 

effect on low-income populations since the benefits from these additional services may not 

reach to them proportionately.   

 

 

  



61 
 

Figure 30: Capital Metro Bus Route 105 (New Service) 

 

  



62 
 

Figure 31: Capital Metro Bus Route 310 (New Service) 

 

  



63 
 

Figure 32: Capital Metro Bus Route 315 (New Service) 

 

  



64 
 

Figure 33: Capital Metro Bus Route 324 (New Service) 

 

  



65 
 

Figure 34: Capital Metro Bus Route 339 (New Service) 

 

 



66 
 

VI. Conclusion 

 

When we considered individual changes, a potential disparate impact on minority populations was 

found for 11 of 13 routes that are proposed to be eliminated and 18 of 20 routes that are proposed 

for major service changes based on the policy thresholds for consideration.   The potential disparate 

impacts are mitigated on almost all of the eliminated routes as these routes will be replaced or 

served by one or multiple new or changed routes.  Similarly, most of the modified routes will be 

replaced or served by one or multiple routes.  In fact, eight of those modified routes will have a 

significant frequency increase that will bring benefits of this service change to minority 

populations.  In addition, there are five new routes that will provide services to significantly high 

minority population areas.     

 

No disproportionate burden on the low-income population was found for any proposed eliminated 

and modified routes. When the new proposed routes are analyzed in isolation from the other 

proposed changes, the analysis identifies a potential for an adverse effect on the low-income 

population since the proposed new routes will not travel through many low-income areas. So, the 

benefits of the new routes may not go to low-income population proportionately.  However, these 

new routes will greatly benefit identified minority populations and the increased frequency and 

other service improvements and modifications of the proposed changes will bring significant 

improvements in service to areas with high concentrations of low-income individuals.  

 

Throughout the planning process, staff evaluated each change to determine whether any adverse 

effects would occur on minority or low-income populations. We applied “Avoid, Minimize, and 

Mitigate” principles to reduce disproportionate impacts.  When staff did find a change that would 

impact one of these groups, available alternatives were identified including alternate trips and 

services that could provide comparable service. After considering public comments and other 

resources, the impact from the final proposed route changes has been reduced compared to the 

initial proposal.  Appendix A on pages 65-68 provides information on how we considered public 

comments in order to finalize the route changes.  In the final proposal, there are 13 routes proposed 

for elimination instead of 17, twenty (20) routes will see major changes instead of 22, and seven new 

routes will be added instead of five.   



67 
 

 

Capital Metro’s responsibility is to guarantee that all transit service, and access to its facilities, are 

equitably distributed and provided without regard to race, color, or national origin. Capital Metro’s 

goal is to also ensure equal opportunities to all individuals to participate in all local, sub regional and 

regional transit planning and decision-making processes.  Capital Metro recognizes the importance 

of ensuring that internal processes, procedures, and policies for conducting any Title VI Equity 

analyses are clearly defined.  Moving forward, we will review, assess, and propose any update or 

revision needed for our existing policies, procedures, and/or thresholds related to Title VI Equity 

Analysis to ensure that the census data and procedures include recent demographics of Austin area 

as permitted by the FTA Circular. 

Capital Metro has conducted extensive public outreach regarding these proposed service changes. 

In the future, we will ensure that the equity analysis is available to the public through our website, 

social media, and other sources. We can also conduct a survey once the service is implemented to 

assess how the changes have affected riders.   

 

As outlined in the FTA Circular 4702.1B, transit agencies “can implement major service changes or 

reductions that would have disproportionately high and adverse impacts provided that the 

recipient demonstrates that the action meets a substantial need that is in the public interest and that 

alternatives would have more severe adverse effects than the preferred alternative”. 

 

All of these changes are designed to improve the entire transit system as a whole, including riding 

experience and operating efficiency.  The number of minority and low-income people within the 

current Capital Metro service area, who will have faster, more reliable access to employment, 

healthcare, education, social services, and recreation opportunities available through these 

upcoming service changes, far exceeds the number of people potentially negatively affected by this 

change.  Overall, the proposed service changes will have a positive impact within the system 

because of the level of investment proposed to increase capacity through additional trips on 

existing services.  Based on this analysis, Capital Metro believes that these proposals do not violate 

federal mandates. 

  



68 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 

  



69 
 

Appendix A -  Consideration of Public Comments in the Planning Process 

 

 

 

 



70 
 

Route Public Comment Revise Rationale 

333 Serve Perez Elementary School No Serves less than 13 boardings per day / 
Decreasing ridership with no growth 
potential 

350 Preserve service to Met Center Yes Extend Route 271 to serve Met Center / 
Serves over 50 boardings per day at Met 
Center 

383 Preserve service to Anderson Mill 
neighborhood, Lakeline Mall, and NLTC 

Yes Serves over 180 boardings in Anderson 
Mill / Lakeline Mall and 375 boardings at 
NLTC (Cost balanced by uncoupling from 
Route 392) 

392 Staff initiated   Yes Route reinstated.  Service would end at 
Burnet instead of Great Hills (served by 
Route 383) / Frequency adjusted to every 
40 minutes 

490 
491 
492 

Continue to operate service at least one 
day a week 

Yes Other service available that operates 7 
days per week 



71 
 

  



72 
 

 

 

 



  
 
U.S. Department   Headquarters 

of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

 
April 26, 2018 
 
Zenobia Joseph 
P.O. Box 143832 
Austin, TX 78714-3832  
 
Re: FTA Complaint No. 17-0326 
 
Dear Ms. Joseph: 
 
This letter responds to your complaint against Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority 
(CapMetro) alleging discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin. The Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) Office of Civil Rights is responsible for ensuring that providers of public 
transportation comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), as implemented by the 
U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) at 49 CFR Part 21, and FTA Circular 4702.1B, “Title VI 
Requirements and Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients.”  
 
In the FTA complaint process, we analyze allegations for possible Title VI deficiencies by the transit 
provider. If deficiencies are identified, we work with the transit provider to correct them within a 
predetermined timeframe. If FTA cannot resolve the apparent violations of Title VI or the DOT Title 
VI regulations by voluntary means, formal enforcement proceedings may be initiated against the 
public transportation provider, which may result in the suspension or termination of federal funds. 
FTA may also refer the matter to the U.S. Department of Justice for enforcement. 
 
Allegations 
In your complaint, you allege that CapMetro did not comply with Title VI requirements with regard 
to its Connections 2025 transit plan. Specifically, you mention that CapMetro has refused to conduct 
service equity analyses, and this refusal would result in a disparate impact on the minority 
population. You describe communicating this matter to CapMetro via writing and in-person multiple 
times between November 2016 and February 2017, and you describe an occasion in which were not 
given an opportunity to speak to the CapMetro board. 
 
After receiving your complaint, FTA sent a request for information to CapMetro. FTA’s findings are 
discussed below. 
 
Analysis 
All FTA recipients must ensure that “[n]o person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, 
color, or national origin be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise 
subjected to discrimination under any program to which [Part 21] applies.” 49 CFR 21.5(a). The 
DOT Title VI regulations require recipients to ensure that race, color, or national origin are not used 

East Building, 5th Floor – TCR 
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE 
Washington, DC 20590 

 



2 
 

as a basis to “[p]rovide any service, financial aid, or other benefit to a person which is different, or is 
provided in a different manner, from that provided to others under the program.” 49 CFR 
21.5(b)(1)(ii). 
 
FTA requires all recipients to integrate Title VI considerations into their established public 
participation plans to ensure minority and low-income communities have an opportunity to engage in 
local transportation decision-making processes. We do not set forth the details of a local public 
participation effort; rather, the Circular notes that “recipients have wide latitude to determine how, 
when, and how often specific public participation activities should take place, and which specific 
measures are most appropriate.” FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chap. III, Section 8. 
 
In addition, we require transit providers that operate 50 or more vehicles in peak service and are 
located in an urbanized area (UZA) of 200,000 or more in population to prepare and submit service 
and fare equity (SAFE) analyses prior to implementing major service or fare changes. FTA Circular 
4702.1B, Chap. IV, Section 7. A transit provider that does not meet this threshold is responsible for 
complying with the DOT Title VI regulations that prohibit disparate impact discrimination, and 
therefore should review its policies and practices to ensure its service and fare changes do not result 
in a disparate impact based on race, color, or national origin.  
 
In this case, we find no Title VI deficiency by CapMetro with regard to the allegations set forth in 
your complaint. Connections 2025 is CapMetro’s transit system study, which looks at short-term and 
longer-term transit needs. The goal of the Connections 2025 is to provide more frequent service 
throughout the service area by reducing duplicative service. CapMetro provided documentation to 
FTA of public participation that ensured it engaged minority and low-income communities regarding 
Connections 2025 and related service changes. Between December 2015 and November 2017, public 
participation included convening two stakeholder advisory committees, holding three rounds of 
public meetings at varied times and locations, and attending numerous neighborhood association 
meetings and community events. CapMetro also conducted at-stop and onboard outreach at high 
ridership stops and in low-income and minority areas. With regard to your allegation, we cannot 
verify the specifics of whether you were not recognized to speak before the CapMetro board. 
However, the record indicates that you raised this matter at least five other times in person or in 
writing. 
 
CapMetro meets the threshold for conducting a SAFE analysis prior to implementing major service 
or fare changes because it operates more than 50 vehicles in peak service and is located in the Austin 
UZA of more than 200,000 in population. The purpose of conducting a SAFE analysis prior to 
implementation is to determine whether those planned changes will have a discriminatory impact 
based on race, color, or national origin. However, the requirement to conduct a SAFE analysis 
applies to planned changes and not to merely recommended changes. Therefore, we distinguish 
between a recommended service change arising from a transit study and a planned or proposed 
service change that an agency is in the process of implementing. Here, Connections 2025 made 
service recommendations that were divided into four implementation phases spread over 10 years. 
These recommendations were not meant to be implemented without further study, public 
participation, and board approval. Because these were recommendations, CapMetro was not required 
to conduct a SAFE analysis until prior to implementing an actual major service or fare change. 
Accordingly, CapMetro is not required to conduct a SAFE analysis for all service and fare changes 
recommended in Connections 2025. Rather, CapMetro is only required to conduct SAFE analyses for 
those major service or fare changes for which it planned to implement. 
 



3 
 

CapMetro provided documentation of three SAFE analyses it conducted for major service and fare 
changes arising from Connections 2025. As an initial matter, CapMetro’s board-approved disparate 
impact, disproportionate burden, and major service change policies comply with the requirements set 
out in the Circular; CapMetro has set thresholds to identify and policies to avoid, minimize, or 
mitigate disparate impacts and disproportionate burdens, which serve the purposes of Title VI. Using 
those policies, CapMetro conducted the three SAFE analyses and submitted them to its Board of 
Directors for consideration each time it sought approval to implement any of the major service or 
fare changes that were recommended by Connections 2025. The SAFE analyses adequately analyzed 
data, assessed service and fare impacts, and analyzed modifications to avoid, minimize, or mitigate 
potential disparate impacts. The three SAFE analyses complied with the requirements of the Circular. 
 
Although CapMetro identified several route eliminations that had potential disparate impacts, it 
replaced substantially all of the eliminated service, often with more frequent service. As a result, the 
total minority and low-income population within 5- and 10-minute walks of frequent service 
substantially improved. For example, with the proposed June 2018 service changes, the total minority 
population within 5 minutes of a bus stop with frequent service will increase from 60,000 currently to 
110,000, which is an increase of 50,000 minority persons. Further, CapMetro acknowledged that 
although 0.6 percent of its existing customers will be further than a 10-minute walk to transit service 
with the service changes, 80 percent of its existing ridership will have access to frequent service 
(compared to 50 percent currently). This benefit includes an increase from two to six frequent routes 
on Austin’s east side, where a substantial population of minority and low-income individuals reside. 
Accordingly, we find no Title VI deficiencies with regard to the SAFE analyses CapMetro has 
conducted to date in relation to Connections 2025. 
 
Conclusion 
The information gathered during our investigation does not support a finding that CapMetro violated 
Title VI requirements in implementing parts of its Connections 2025 transit plan. The record shows 
CapMetro complied with the applicable DOT Title VI regulations and FTA Title VI guidance. 
Although CapMetro identified potential disparate impacts arising from route eliminations, it has 
shown that it has not only avoided, minimized, or mitigated those impacts but has substantially 
improved service for minority and low-income individuals. 
 
This concludes the processing of your complaint. If you have any questions, please contact our toll-
free civil rights hotline at (888) 446-4511 and we will be glad to talk with you. 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Dawn Sweet 
Director, Headquarters Operations Division 
Office of Civil Rights 
 
cc:  CapMetro  
 FTA Region 6 



  Date:      October 15, 2018 
  Continued From:                         N/A 

 Action Requested:                   Information  

  

To: Transportation Policy Board 

From: Mr. Ashby Johnson, CAMPO 

Agenda Item: 8 

 Subject: Presentation on Regional Incident Management Study 

RECOMMENDATION 

None.  This item is for information purposes only. 
  

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

CAMPO is currently in the final phases of developing the Regional Incident Management Strategic Plan 

and Performance Assessment.  The study recommendations and draft report have been guided and 

reviewed by a Project Steering Committee which includes TxDOT, CTRMA, Hays County, Travis 

County, City of Austin and the City of Round Rock.  The draft report has also been peer reviewed by 

experts at the Texas Transportation Institute (TTI).  Outreach has included individual meetings with 

stakeholder agencies and three stakeholder workshops.  To date more than 54 individuals from 20 

different agencies have provided input into the plan, including local and state transportation, public safety, 

emergency management, and towing industry representatives. 
 

The Regional Incident Management Strategic Plan and Performance Assessment study has identified 29 

strategies, programs, and projects to support three goals: 

• Reduce the impacts of incidents to travelers in the Region, including reduced roadway clearance 

time, incident clearance time, and time to return to normal traffic flow; 

• Reduce secondary crashes in the Region; and 

• Provide accurate and timely traveler information to travelers throughout the Region. 
 

Recommendations have been categorized into seven areas:  Policy, Communication and Coordination, 

Infrastructure, Response and Clearance Procedures, Training, Data and Performance Measures, and Public 

Engagement.  Estimated costs for improvements in each of these areas vary from policy improvements 

which may have no direct costs associated with them to infrastructure improvements which may have 

substantial implementation costs.  Responsibility for funding recommended improvements, should they be 

implemented, will fall primarily on the various lead agencies responsible for each.   
 

A data-driven benefit-cost analysis has been conducted to quantify the potential return on investment to 

the Region for many of the proposed recommendations that were conducive to quantitative analysis.  

Funding and training opportunities to promote incident management strategies have also been identified.   
 

A draft report for the Regional Incident Management Strategic Plan and Performance Assessment is 

currently being reviewed by stakeholders and the final report is expected in October 2018.  Next steps 

include presenting to the Transportation Policy Board (TPB) for information in October, presenting the 

final report to the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) in October for recommendation to the TPB, and 

presentation to the TPB for approval in November 2018. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None. 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

CAMPO Regional Incident Management Strategic Plan and Performance Assessment Draft Report 



 



 
 

 

Executive Summary................................................................................................. ii 

1 | Introduction ..................................................................................................... 1 

2 | Need for Traffic Incident Management in the Region ....................................... 5 

3 | Existing TIM Activities in the Region ................................................................. 9 

4 | Recommendations ......................................................................................... 18 

5 | Performance Measures .................................................................................. 33 

6 | Funding Strategies .......................................................................................... 38 

7 | Next Steps ...................................................................................................... 46 

Appendix | Cost-Benefit Analysis ........................................................................ A-1 



 
 

 

 

file://///AUSFP01/Data/Project/AUS_ITS/067778701%20CAMPO%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan/Report/Draft%20CAMPO%20Regional%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan%20(SSC%20comments).docx%23_Toc524009392
file://///AUSFP01/Data/Project/AUS_ITS/067778701%20CAMPO%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan/Report/Draft%20CAMPO%20Regional%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan%20(SSC%20comments).docx%23_Toc524009393
file://///AUSFP01/Data/Project/AUS_ITS/067778701%20CAMPO%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan/Report/Draft%20CAMPO%20Regional%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan%20(SSC%20comments).docx%23_Toc524009395
file://///AUSFP01/Data/Project/AUS_ITS/067778701%20CAMPO%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan/Report/Draft%20CAMPO%20Regional%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan%20(SSC%20comments).docx%23_Toc524009397
file://///AUSFP01/Data/Project/AUS_ITS/067778701%20CAMPO%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan/Report/Draft%20CAMPO%20Regional%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan%20(SSC%20comments).docx%23_Toc524009398
file://///AUSFP01/Data/Project/AUS_ITS/067778701%20CAMPO%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan/Report/Draft%20CAMPO%20Regional%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan%20(SSC%20comments).docx%23_Toc524009399
file://///AUSFP01/Data/Project/AUS_ITS/067778701%20CAMPO%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan/Report/Draft%20CAMPO%20Regional%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan%20(SSC%20comments).docx%23_Toc524009400
file://///AUSFP01/Data/Project/AUS_ITS/067778701%20CAMPO%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan/Report/Draft%20CAMPO%20Regional%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan%20(SSC%20comments).docx%23_Toc524009401
file://///AUSFP01/Data/Project/AUS_ITS/067778701%20CAMPO%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan/Report/Draft%20CAMPO%20Regional%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan%20(SSC%20comments).docx%23_Toc524009402
file://///AUSFP01/Data/Project/AUS_ITS/067778701%20CAMPO%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan/Report/Draft%20CAMPO%20Regional%20IM%20Strategic%20Plan%20(SSC%20comments).docx%23_Toc524009403


 

 

 

 

 

 



 

• 

• 

• 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

POLICY Develop Regional Open Roads Policy

Develop a standardized HAZMAT and non-HAZMAT clean-up policy for the Region

Create a position for a Regional TIM Coordinator

Develop standard operating procedures for TMC coordination throughout the Region

Develop platform for shared viewing of all cameras and DMS throughout the Region

Develop a regional repository for incident status available to all CAMPO agencies

Expand sharing of computer-aided dispatch (CAD) data throughout the Region

INFRASTRUCTURE Expand freeway lighting coverage

Expand CCTV camera coverage on freeways

Expand DMS coverage on freeways

Deploy DMS on state routes in rural areas at key decision points in the CAMPO Region

Expand arterial DMS coverage in the City of Austin

Expand traffic signal preemption for emergency vehicles

Expand HERO service patrol coverage to additional freeways

Expand HERO service patrol coverage to regional arterials

Implement rapid clear no-cost towing on freeways

Implement rapid clear no-cost towing on regional arterials 

Implement centralized location-based towing dispatch throughout the Region

Implement heavy-tow program throughout the Region

Procure advanced crash investigation equipment for law enforcement throughout the Region  

TRAINING Support continued regional interdisciplinary TIM training 

Educate first responder agencies about capabilities of HERO service patrol vehicles

Provide training for advanced crash investigation equipment to law enforcement throughout the Region  

Standardize regional TIM data collection, data visualization, and performance measures

Share regional TIM performance data between public agencies in data dashboard

Share regional TIM performance data with media and public in annual report and data dashboard       

Increase knowledge and support of HERO through public education efforts

Raise awareness of statewide Steer It, Clear It law

Improve traveler information quality through increased coordination with private sector providers

RESPONSE & 

CLEARANCE

DATA & 

PERFORMANCE 

MEASURES

PUBLIC 

ENGAGEMENT

RECOMMENDATIONS

COMMUNICATION 

& COORDINATION

 

 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 





• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 



 



 

46 50

113

46

28

47

243

36

91
79

27

74

AUS DAL ELP FTW HOU SAT

TxDOT District Average Incident Clearance Times
(July 2018)

Collision Duration (min) Disabled Vehicle Duration (min)

Notes 
• Incident Clearance Time: A measure of the average time (in minutes) from incident 

detection to clearance for collisions (plus overturns & fires) and disabled vehicles 
(plus stalls & abandoned vehicles). 

• Incidents included in this dataset occurred along HERO-patrolled roadways and were 
tracked by TxDOT through their advanced traffic management system software. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 



 

• 

• 

• 

https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/publications/fhwahop09005/index.htm


 



 

 



 



 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

• 

• 

• 



 
 

SHORT-TERM 

(0-4 YEARS)

MID-TERM 

(5-10 YEARS)

LONG-TERM 

(10+ YEARS)

 LOW COST OF 

IMPLEMENTATION

EASE OF 

IMPLEMENTATION

BENEFIT-COST 

RATIO

POLICY Develop Regional Open Roads Policy CAMPO

Develop a standardized HAZMAT and non-HAZMAT clean-up policy for the Region CAMPO

Create a position for a Regional TIM Coordinator CAMPO or TxDOT

Develop standard operating procedures for TMC coordination throughout the Region TxDOT, CTRMA, or Municipalities

Develop platform for shared viewing of all cameras and DMS throughout the Region TxDOT or CAMPO

Develop a regional repository for incident status available to all CAMPO agencies TxDOT or CAMPO

Expand sharing of computer-aided dispatch (CAD) data throughout the Region Transportation and Public Safety Agencies

INFRASTRUCTURE Expand freeway lighting coverage TxDOT

Expand CCTV camera coverage on freeways TxDOT

Expand DMS coverage on freeways TxDOT

Deploy DMS on state routes in rural areas at key decision points in the CAMPO Region TxDOT

Expand arterial DMS coverage in the City of Austin City of Austin

Expand traffic signal preemption for emergency vehicles Regional Municipalities

Expand HERO service patrol coverage to additional freeways TxDOT

Expand HERO service patrol coverage to regional arterials TxDOT and Regional Municipalities

Implement rapid clear no-cost towing on freeways CAMPO or Regional Municipalities

Implement rapid clear no-cost towing on regional arterials CAMPO or Regional Municipalities

Implement centralized location-based towing dispatch throughout the Region CAMPO or Regional Municipalities

Implement heavy-tow program throughout the Region CAMPO, TxDOT, or Regional Municipalities

Procure advanced crash investigation equipment for law enforcement throughout the Region  CAMPO, TxDOT, or DPS

TRAINING Support continued regional interdisciplinary TIM training CAMPO or TxDOT

Educate first responder agencies about capabilities of HERO service patrol vehicles TxDOT

Provide training for advanced crash investigation equipment to law enforcement throughout the Region  CAMPO, TxDOT, or DPS

Standardize regional TIM data collection, data visualization, and performance measures TxDOT or CAMPO

Share regional TIM performance data between public agencies in data dashboard TxDOT or CAMPO

Share regional TIM performance data with media and public in annual report and data dashboard       CAMPO and TxDOT

Increase knowledge and support of HERO through public education efforts TxDOT and CAMPO

Raise awareness of statewide Steer It, Clear It law TxDOT and CAMPO

Improve traveler information quality through increased coordination with private sector providers Transportation Agencies

CAMPO REGIONAL INCIDENT MANAGEMENT STRATEGIC PLAN AND PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

COMMUNICATION & 

COORDINATION

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

RESPONSE & 

CLEARANCE

ESTIMATED SCORE (                = Best)PROJECTED IMPLEMENTATION TIME FRAME

LEAD AGENCYRECOMMENDATION

DATA & 

PERFORMANCE 

MEASURES

FY
 2

01
9

 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Figure 14 – Summary of Funding Opportunities

 

 

Figure 14 – Summary of Funding Opportunities



 

 

 

 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=23-USC-1248474168-194960212&term_occur=1&term_src=title:23:chapter:1:section:148


 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

https://www.fema.gov/staffing-adequate-fire-emergency-response-grants-grantee-award-year-2016
https://www.fema.gov/staffing-adequate-fire-emergency-response-grants-grantee-award-year-2016
http://texasforestservice.tamu.edu/RuralVFDAssistanceProgram/
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/emstraumasystems/efunding.shtm
https://www.txdot.gov/government/funding/egrants.html


 

 

https://firehousesubsfoundation.org/


 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 



 

A-

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

• 

• 

• 

 



 



 

• 

• 



 

• 



 



 



 



 



  Date:      October 15, 2018 
  Continued From:                         N/A 

 Action Requested:                   Information  

  

To: Technical Advisory Committee 

From: Ms. Doise Miers, Community Outreach Manager 

Agenda Item: 9 

Subject: Update on Public Participation Plan (PPP)  

RECOMMENDATION 

None.  This item is for information purposes only. 
 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

CAMPO’s Public Participation Plan was last updated in 2015. Since that time, CAMPO has added 

planning processes and the FAST Act was passed by Congress. Additionally, outreach tools and strategies 

have evolved.  
 

This Draft PPP adds language to comply with FAST Act requirements and also adds outreach 

requirements for CAMPO’s planning studies. This update replaces the tiered system with a system based 

on the planning document type. The update also adds outreach practices described in the appendix. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None. 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Draft PPP 

Draft PPP Update Summary 



Adopted: April 2, 2012   Amended: March 5, 2014   Amended: August 31,2015 
Amended: XXXXX 2018

2018
Public 
Participation 
Plan

DRAFT



2

Public Participation Plan - 2018

The preparation of this report has been financed in part through grants from the Federal Highway Administration and 
Federal Transit Administration, US Department of Transportation, under the Metropolitan Planning Program [Section 
104 (f) of the Title 23, US Code). The contents of this report do not necessarily reflect the official views or policy of the 
US Department of Transportation.

Disclaimer
DRAFT



3

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Providing a Fair and Equal Opportunity to Participate

CONTENTS

Limited English Proficiency and Environmental Justice

Participation Objective and Strategies

Our Drivers -- Federally Mandated Transportation Programs

CAMPO Planning Programs

Participation at CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meetings

Public Information Requests

Public Participation Approach

Minimum Standards for Participation Methods

Administrative Amendments

RTP and TIP Amendments

CAMPO Studies

TIP Adoption

RTP Adoption

Performance Objectives and Monitoring

Revising this Document

Appendix -- Participation Toolbox

4

4

5

7

8

8

8

9

10

14

15

14

16

19

17

20

21

DRAFT



4

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Providing a Fair and Equal Opportunity to Participate
As the metropolitan planning organization encompassing Bastrop, Burnet, Caldwell, Hays, Travis, and 
Williamson counties, the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) has a responsibility to 
serve the community and stakeholders and provide equitable access to participate and provide input in the 
decision-making process.

Governed by the 21-member Transportation Policy Board representing local governments and agencies, 
CAMPO believes that conversation, engagement, and transparency among stakeholders is key to 
meaningful and lasting mobility changes across its six counties. 

Federal and state transportation planning laws1  and guidance require open participation, regardless 
of geographic location, economic and educational status, or race. CAMPO’s Public Participation Plan 
outlines how the organization responds to the requirements set by federal and state guidance and provides 
examples of how CAMPO is going above and beyond these basic requirements and enhancing participation, 
communication, and access to the region’s transportation planning process.

As a federally sponsored agency, CAMPO must incorporate policies and procedures of Environmental 
Justice and Limited English Proficiency into its transportation planning studies and programs. CAMPO 
incorporates these policies into the required programs and is committed to giving a voice to those historically 
underrepresented in transportation planning efforts—including residents of rural areas, those of lower 
socioeconomic status, people of color, immigrants, and individuals with disabilities—outreach to minority and 
traditionally underserved communities is a key component of CAMPO’s work.

Executive Order (E.O.) 13166 “Improving Access to Services for 
Persons with Limited English Proficiency” challenges federal 
agencies to “implement a system by which [limited English-
proficient or “LEP”] persons can meaningfully access services 
consistent with, and without unduly burdening, the fundamental 
mission of the agency.”2 

Additionally, Executive Order 1 2898, “Federal Actions to address 
Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income 
Populations” directs every Federal agency to make environmental 
justice part of its mission by identifying and addressing the effects 
of all programs, policies, and activities on minority populations and 
low-income populations. The Federal Highway Administration 
summarizes this charge to metropolitan planning organizations to 
evaluate and, where necessary, improve their public involvement 
processes to eliminate participation barriers and engage minority and low-income populations in 
transportation decision making.”3 

1 Such as Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Executive Orders 12898 and 13166.
2 Federal Highway Administration. n.d. Limited English Proficiency
3 Federal Highway Administration. 2000. An Overview of Transportation and Environmental Justice. Publication No. FHWA-
EP-00-013.

Limited English Proficiency and Environmental Justice

DRAFT



5

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Participation Objective and Strategies
This document acts as the update to the 2015 CAMPO Public Participation Program (2015 PPP) and serves 
to ensure that all citizens have an equal opportunity to participate in the CAMPO decision-making process. 
Recognizing the importance of public involvement throughout the transportation planning process, this 
Public Participation Plan (PPP) is intended to actively engage people in the process.4

To support this objective, CAMPO deliberately plans inclusive, diverse public participation programs as 
part of its transportation planning processes. CAMPO’s public participation programs include collaboration 
with local governments and agencies, schools, and a wide variety of special interest groups including, 
but not limited to, public and private transportation 
employees and stakeholders, freight interests, bicycle 
and pedestrian stakeholders, and stakeholders with 
and representing those with disabilities. These public 
participation programs also include communication 
and outreach methods specifically tailored to 
audiences and stakeholders.   The following strategies 
are adapted from federal planning rules and guides 
CAMPO’s public participation programs.

• Provide public notice of public participation activities using appropriate methods and time
for public review and comment at key decision points.

• Notify and provide access to information about transportation issues and processes in a
timely fashion, using various print and electronically accessible formats.

• Use visualizations and clear, concise, non-technical language to describe proposed
changes.

• Hold public open houses at convenient times and locations.
• Demonstrate explicit consideration and response to public input received during the

development of the regional transportation plan and transportation improvement program.
• Seek out low-income and minority environmental justice households and vulnerable

populations5, who may face challenges accessing employment and other services.
• If a final regional transportation plan and transportation improvement program varies

significantly from the public comment version, provide additional opportunities for public
comment.

• Coordinate with statewide participation processes.
• Evaluate effectiveness of participation methods.
• Review and update this participation plan as needed to ensure a full and open process.

4 Sanoff, Henry. 2007. Participation in Planning and Urban Design Standards. Eds. F. Steiner, K. Butler and E. Sendich. John 
Wiley & Sons: Hoboken, New Jersey.
5 Based on definitions from federal organizations and regulatory agencies, CAMPO defines vulnerable populations as groups 
of people, including but not limited to minority groups based on race, ethnicity, income, national origin, educational level, ability-
level, English proficiency level, and age.

OBJECTIVE:
Provide a forum that empowers all 
stakeholders and demographics with 
equitable access to participate and 
provide input in the transportation 
planning and decision-making process.

STRATEGIES:

DRAFT



6

Public Participation Plan - 2018

This update uses an approach based on CAMPO’s planning and decision-making processes and is designed 
to define elements that lead to effective outreach and participation in a successful public participation 
plan. The Participation Toolbox, found in the Appendix, should be used to refine select elements of an 
overall outreach strategy based on the recommendations of each category. As programs and participation 
techniques continue to grow, the toolbox is intended to be expanded and revised, and is not intended to be 
an exhaustive list of outreach tools. 

DRAFT



7

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Our Drivers -- Federally Mandated Transportation Programs

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP):

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP):

Public Participation Plans (PPPs) are federally required6  to guide participation for metropolitan planning 
organizations, including the region’s Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP).

This long-range planning document is adopted by the Transportation Policy Board (TPB) and serves as a 
policy document and guide for regional transportation planning and implementation. Under current federal 
regulations, the RTP is updated at least every five years. Projects listed in the plan are designed to meet travel 
needs within the six-county CAMPO region for at least the next 20 years. The RTP is a fiscally constrained, 
multi-modal planning document that addresses various elements including congestion management, public 
transportation, roadways, freight, and active transportation modes.

The TIP outlines those projects in the CAMPO region that have secured funding sources and have reached 
project development milestones that allow for project implementation to begin within the four-year window 
of the TIP.   All projects in the TIP must also be included in CAMPO’s Regional Transportation Plan as well as 
be in compliance with the planning area’s Congestion Management Process. The TIP must be updated every 
two years and must contain:
• Roadway, transit, and grouped projects7

• Financial Plan
• Project description including type of work, termini, length, etc.

The CAMPO Public Participation Plan strategies regarding  TIP adoption may be used for  entities’ FTA 
Programs of Projects, including but not limited to FTA Section 5307:
• Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Capital Metro)
• Capital Area Rural Transportation System (CARTS)
• City of Round Rock
• CARTS Urban, San Marcos UZA

These entities may use the strategies outlined in the PPP and partner with CAMPO during community 
meetings, however, CAMPO’s outreach does not satisfy the public involvement required for these entities. 
Additionally, Capital Metro and CARTS should have multiple meetings that are geographically disbursed 
throughout their respective service areas.

6 23 CFR Part 450.314
7 Grouped projects are not considered to be of an appropriate scale or scope for individual listing in the TIP as determined by 
FHWA and TxDOT. These project categories are Preliminary Engineering, Right-of-Way Acquisition, Preventive Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation, Bridge Replacement and Rehabilitation, Railroad Grade Separations, Safety, Landscaping, Intelligent Transportation 
System Deployment, Bicycle and Pedestrian, Safety Rest Areas, and Transit Improvements.

DRAFT



8

Public Participation Plan - 2018

CAMPO Planning Programs

Participation at CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meetings

Public Information Requests

In addition to the federally required planning programs, CAMPO also conducts planning studies and 
programs throughout the six-county region. These studies inform long-range planning efforts and serve 
as a regional conversation about the area’s growing needs. As part of these planning programs, CAMPO 
conducts extensive public outreach at key milestones throughout the study to inform the public about the 
study purpose and goals and to gather feedback on the community’s needs and ideas. Examples of such 
programs that will influence the CAMPO 2045 Plan include: 

• Regional Active Transportation Plan
• Regional Arterials Plan and Mokan/Northeast Subregional Plan
• Regional Transit Plan
• Regional Transportation Demand Management Study

The Transportation Policy Board (TPB) is CAMPO’s governing body that provides policy guidance and 
direction for transportation planning and also reviews and approves projects and federal funding as part of 
the RTP and TIP.   TPB meetings are typically held monthly and include an open public comment period, as 
well as the opportunity for the public to comment on action items on the TPB’s agenda.  The TPB adopts 
bylaws which guide their meetings and public participation, and may be referred to for specific guidance on 
participation.  For more information, visit our website on the TPB at:  www.campotexas.org/transportation-
policy-board/

There are several ways requests for information can be submitted to CAMPO. Requests must be submitted in 
writing. 

• In-person and postal mail: 3300 N. I-35, Suite 630, Austin, Texas, 78705
• Email: campo.openrecords@campotexas.org
• Fax: 737-708-8140

DRAFT



9

Public Participation Plan - 2018

As a regional transportation governing body, CAMPO coordinates a number of studies and plans which 
solicit the need for public participation at varying scales. As summarized below, CAMPO uses a community 
outreach approach based on what is being amended, studied, or adopted. A variety of outreach methods are 
emphasized to increase public participation opportunities within CAMPO’s region while being mindful of the 
public’s limited time and CAMPO’s community outreach resources. 

Administrative amendments could include changes in funding source or non-substantive alterations, and 
are approved by the CAMPO Executive Director. No explicit participation process is required, and the TPB is 
notified of administrative amendments at their meetings. 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) amendments are 
amendments that can include changes to funding amounts or changes in the scope of a project already 
approved in the RTP or TIP, as well as amendments adding new projects to these planning documents. 
Projects sponsors are given the opportunity to submit amendments to the RTP and TIP generally twice a 
year. 

CAMPO studies are conducted in preparation for adopting a 
new RTP and are improved with community feedback that is 
incorporated in various plans that reflect the region’s various 
needs.  

TIP adoption occurs every two years and requires public input 
to ensure regional needs and perspectives are considered. 

RTP adoption occurs every five years and requires an approach 
that maximizes opportunities for community involvement.

CAMPO uses a variety of public involvement strategies 
intended to maximize engagement opportunities. This plan 
includes emphasis on seeking opportunities to meet with 
the public face-to-face, offering in-person and online input 
opportunities, and using traditional and electronic notification methods to spread the word of important 
actions. The following table, beginning on the next page, provides a guide of techniques to be used in the 
various community outreach opportunities. 

Public Participation Approach

The CAMPO 2045 Transportation Plan is an 
example of a CAMPO RTP.

DRAFT



10

Public Participation Plan - 2018

STRATEGIES
Getting the 
Word Out

High-Touch High-Tech Communicating
Results

Administrative 
Amendments

Following 
approval, 
notification in 
Transportation 
Policy Board 
(TPB) meeting 
materials online

N/A N/A N/A

RTP and TIP 
Amendments 

&
PPP Revisions

News release (at 
least one)

Email notification 
through online 
newsletter or 
regular email to 
subscribers

Postal mail 
notification to 
subscribers

Social media post 
(at least one) 
of community 
meetings 
and online 
commenting 
opportunities

Notice on 
CAMPO website 
to include dates, 
time, and location

At least one 
community 
meeting held in 
the vicinity of the 
project(s)

At least one 
meeting (public 
hearing) held at 
TPB meeting, 
prior to TPB 
action

Speakers bureau 
events as 
requested, upon 
staff availability

Online open 
house and 
comment 
opportunity

Social media 
post linking to 
information on 
website

Summary of 
comments 
received provided 
to TPB 7 days in 
advance of action

Minimum Standards for Participation Methods

For more detailed informationon Amendments, see page 14.

DRAFT



11

Public Participation Plan - 2018

For more detailed information on

CAMPO studies, see page 15.

Getting the 
Word Out

High-Touch High-Tech Communicating 
Results

CAMPO Studies News release (at 
least one)

Email notification 
through online 
newsletter or 
regular email 
subscribers

Postal mail 
notification to 
subscribers

Social media post 
(at least one) 
of community 
meetings 
and online 
commenting 
opportunities

Notice on 
CAMPO website 
to include dates, 
time, and location

At least one 
community 
meeting held in 
the vicinity of the 
study

Speakers bureau 
events as 
requested upon 
staff availability

Visualization 
of potential 
improvements 
resulting from the 
study

Online comment 
opportunity (e.g. 
email or survey)

Social media 
post linking to 
information on 
website

Summary of 
comments 
received provided 
to TPB 7 days in 
advance of action

Final adopted 
study document 
will include a 
summary of 
comments

*If a study or plan
is conducted as
a partnership
with a local
government, the
local government’s
governing body
(city council/
commissioners
court) must adopt
the study before
CAMPO’s TPB
concurs with the
study or plan.

Minimum Standards for Participation Methods continued

DRAFT



12

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Getting the 
Word Out

High-Touch High-Tech Communicating 
Results

TIP Adoption News release (at 
least one) 

Email notification 
through online 
newsletter or 
regular email to 
subscribers

Postal mail 
notification to 
subscribers

Social media post 
(at least one) 
of community 
meetings 
and online 
commenting 
opportunities

Notice on 
CAMPO website 
to include dates, 
time, and location

Community 
meetings held 
in each CAMPO 
county

Speakers bureau 
events actively 
pursued 

Fairs and public 
venues

Online open 
house and 
comment 
opportunity

Social media 
post linking to 
information on 
website

Summary of 
comments 
received provided 
to TPB 7 days in 
advance of action

Minimum Standards for Participation Methods continued

For more detailed information

on TIP Adoption, see page 16.

DRAFT



13

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Getting the 
Word Out

High-Touch High-Tech Communicating 
Results

RTP Adoption*

*This is a two phase 
process with the 

methods described 
here to be used in 

each phase. Public 
comments from each 

round are to be posted 
prior to FINAL TPB 

action.

News release (at 
least one)

Email notification 
through online 
newsletter or 
regular email to 
subscribers

Postal mail 
notification to 
subscribers

Social media post 
(at least one) 
of community 
meetings 
and online 
commenting 
opportunities

Notice on 
CAMPO website 
to include dates, 
time, and location

Participate in 
transportation 
fairs as available

Public outreach 
information 
posted to 
CAMPO website.

Community 
meetings held 
in each CAMPO 
county

Speakers bureau 
events actively 
pursued

Fairs and public 
venues actively 
pursued

Online open 
house and 
comment 
opportunity

Social media 
post linking to 
information on 
website

Visualization 
of potential 
improvements/
projects proposed 
in RTP as a result 
of CAMPO 
studies

Public 
involvement 
report with public 
comments posted 
to website at least 
one week prior to 
TPB action on the 
FINAL RTP.

Minimum Standards for Participation Methods continued

For more detailed informationon RTP Adoption, see page 17.

DRAFT



14

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Administrative amendments are a means to address those planning procedures that do not require public 
comment and approval by the Transportation Policy Board. These changes are reflected in documentation, 
and cannot result in a functional change to the transportation system.

Examples of administrative amendments would include:
• Fixing typographical errors
• Decreasing project funding without changing its scope

Typically, twice a year, project sponsors are given an opportunity to make changes to their projects in the 
CAMPO RTP and TIP and to add projects to these planning documents. These amendments are submitted to 
the CAMPO TPB at the request of project sponsors. Examples of amendments include adding or removing 
projects and changing funding sources, project descriptions, and/or project limits. 

The same process and methods are also required for changes to this PPP that are beyond administrative in 
nature. 

Administrative Amendments

RTP and TIP Amendments

Two or more in-person public meetings are required for RTP and TIP amendments, 
including a public hearing at a Transportation Policy Board meeting. At least one 
community meeting should be provided at a location accessible by the population 
affected by the proposed change.

• Project sponsors should be notified up to 14 days prior to the planned community
meeting. Their participation at in-person community meetings allows attendees to
ask project-specific questions and receive immediate feedback.

• In-person meeting locations and times should be accessible to the general public,
including those individuals who may not have access to an automobile.

• An online open house must be available on the CAMPO website during the public
comment period and include material from the in-person meeting and direct links to
submit online comments.

• Translation for non-English speakers, materials for the visually impaired, and services
for the deaf and hard of hearing shall be available when requested by those needing
them, subject to availability of services. If special services are needed, the services
must be requested within five business days advanced notice to CAMPO staff. The
availability of these services should be mentioned in the meeting notice.

Meeting Requirements:

DRAFT



15

Public Participation Plan - 2018

CAMPO Studies

RTP and TIP amendments may involve multiple 
jurisdictions, often resulting in a higher level 
of coordination across multiple stakeholder 
groups and a higher desire for additional 
opportunities for public input. Increased efforts 
to seek input from minority and low-income 
populations is a priority so community outreach 
methods tailored to traditionally underserved 
communities are used during the RTP and TIP 
amendment process.

CAMPO conducts regional transportation studies in preparation for RTP planning and adoption, and 
also partners with CAMPO member jurisdictions on studies in a small geographic area that benefit the 
member government’s community. Combined, these studies offer a comprehensive, multi-modal regional 
transportation plan and address more locally-focused planning needs. 
CAMPO studies may involve 
multiple jurisdictions, often 
resulting in a higher level of 
coordination across multiple 
stakeholder groups and a 
higher desire for additional 
opportunities for public 
input. Increased efforts to 
seek input from minority and 
low-income populations 
is a priority so community 
outreach methods 
tailored to traditionally 
underserved communities 
are used for CAMPO 
studies. Coordination and 
involvement between 
CAMPO and necessary 
local, regional, state, and 
federal agencies is also 
included in CAMPO’s 
studies. 

Amendments to the RTP or TIP requiring quick action 
due to impending federal or state requirements 
or deadlines (or for other reasons deemed in the 
community’s best interest) may be accomplished 
by a 75% vote of the Transportation Policy Board 
members present to waive participation methods 
outlined in the PPP. In these cases, the Transportation 
Policy Board will hold a special public hearing within 
its normal meeting agenda to solicit public comment 
on the proposed amendment(s). These actions will 
be included on the meeting agenda posted on the 
CAMPO website prior to the Transportation Policy 
Board meeting thus encouraging public attendance 
and comment on the action prior to adoption by the 
Policy Board.

RTP and TIP Amendments Quick Action Option:

At least one in-person public meeting is required for CAMPO 
studies, and should be provided at a location accessible by the 
population affected by the study.

• In-person meeting locations and times should be accessible
to the general public, including those individuals who may not 
have access to an automobile.  

• An online open house must be available on the CAMPO
website during the public comment period and include
material from the in-person meeting and direct links to submit
online comments.

• Translation for non-English speakers, materials for the visually
impaired, and services for the deaf and hard of hearing shall
be available when requested by those needing them, subject
to availability of services. If special services are needed, the
services must be requested within five business days advanced
notice to CAMPO staff. The availability of these services
should be mentioned in the meeting notice.

• Requirements for CAMPO partnered studies will be based on
community need.

Meeting Requirements:

DRAFT



16

Public Participation Plan - 2018

TIP Adoption

Outreach methods that may be used are included in the Appendix and may include:
• Surveys at Capital Metro and CARTS service centers, transfer hubs, bus stops, and onboard buses, where

possible
• Meeting notices and study information, holding small meetings, and conducting surveys at public

recreation centers and libraries in minority or low-income communities in the study area
• Posting meeting notices and study information, holding small meetings, and conducting surveys at

public recreation centers and libraries in minority or low-income communities in the study area
• Posting meeting notices and study information, holding small meetings, and conducting surveys at

community colleges, universities, and other educational institutions

Every two years, a new TIP is adopted for the upcoming four-year project programming cycle. The first two 
years of the new TIP are carried forward from the previous TIP; the last two years of the new TIP includes new 
projects. During adoption of the new TIP, projects sponsors have the opportunity to submit amendments to 
their projects in the TIP, and also submit new projects that qualify for inclusion in the TIP (funding must be 
identified and the project must begin implementation in the let year indicated on the TIP). 

TIP adoption involves multiple jurisdictions, often resulting in a higher level of coordination across multiple 
stakeholder groups and a higher desire for additional opportunities for public input. Increased efforts to seek 
input from minority and low-income populations is a priority so community outreach methods tailored to 
transitionally underserved communities are used during the RTP and TIP amendment process.

In-person public meetings in each of the six CAMPO counties are required for TIP 
adoption in addition to a public hearing at a Transportation Policy Board meeting. The public 
hearing offers an opportunity for the public to give input at a TPB meeting so the TPB may 
consider and respond to public comment, and potentially make changes to the draft TIP 
prior to TIP adoption. Project sponsors should be notified up to 14 days prior to the planned 
community meeting. Their participation at in-person community meetings allows attendees 
to ask project-specific questions and receive immediate feedback.

• In-person meeting locations and times should be accessible to the general public,
including those individuals who may not have access to an automobile.

• An online open house must be available on the CAMPO website during the public
comment period and include material from the in-person meeting and direct links to
submit online comments.

• Translation for non-English speakers, materials for the visually impaired, and services for
the deaf and hard of hearing shall be available when requested by those needing them,
subject to availability of services. If special services are needed, the services must be
requested within five business days advanced notice to CAMPO staff. The availability of
these services should be mentioned in the meeting notice.

Meeting Requirements:

DRAFT



17

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Every five years, a new RTP is adopted for the next five-year planning cycle. The RTP is a 20+ year planning 
document and is considered a “snapshot in time” of long-term projects planned for the CAMPO region. The 
RTP contains information and projects compiled from CAMPO studies, local jurisdiction studies and plans, as 
well and projects in the TIP since TIP projects must also be listed in the RTP. 

RTP adoption involves multiple jurisdictions and must include a high level of coordination across many 
stakeholder groups and allow for multiple opportunities for public input. Increased efforts to seek input 
from all corners of the CAMPO region - rural, urban, and suburban areas, and minority and low-income 
populations is a priority so variety of community outreach methods are used to reach and gather input from 
the various communities and stakeholders in the CAMPO region. 

Planning for and adoption of the RTP is a longer process than most CAMPO planning documents so two 
phases of outreach are used. The first phase focuses on introducing the first draft RTP to the community 
and gathering feedback on the first draft for consideration by the TPB. This first phase is used to gather 
preliminary feedback on the first RTP draft, and incorporate that feedback into the final draft RTP. The 
second phase of outreach is to demonstrate how the first round of public input was used in developing the 
final draft and explain the final draft RTP prior to TPB action. The methods described below are to be used in 
each phase. Public comments from each round are to be posted prior to final TPB action.

RTP Adoption

At least one press release must be issued to media sources throughout the 
CAMPO region. The medium in which the release is provided should be in a 
format that best meets the needs of the project. Additionally, notifications 
may be expanded to include formalized announcements, ads or posters 
placed at highly visible and easily accessible locations throughout the project, 
social media posts and ads, and earned media stories. Newsletters may be 
generated as needed to keep interested public participants abreast of the 
latest project developments or successes. Additionally, where appropriate, 
notification flyers may be expanded to include more neighborhood-specific 
locations such as community centers, libraries, senior centers, places of 
worship, and schools and educational institutions.

Public Notification for Comments:

Community Outreach Plan:
A Community Outreach Plan is used to detail the various 
methods to be used, stakeholders to target, and timeline 
for the combined phases of outreach for the RTP adoption.  
This plan also includes overall project goals and objectives and 
necessary coordination between CAMPO and necessary local, 
regional, state, and federal agencies.DRAFT



18

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Six or more in-person public meetings, with at least one in each CAMPO 
county, are required for RTP adoption, in addition to including a public 
hearing at a Transportation Policy Board meeting. The public hearing 
applies to only the second round of outreach prior to TPB adoption of the 
RTP. The public hearing offers an opportunity for the public to give input at a 
TPB meeting so the TPB may consider and respond to public comment, and 
potentially make changes to the draft RTP prior to RTP adoption.  

• In-person meeting locations and times should be accessible to the
general public, including those individuals who may not have access to an
automobile.

• An online open house must be available on the CAMPO website during the
public comment period(s) and include material from the in-person meeting
and direct links to submit online comments.

• Translation for non-English speakers, materials for the visually impaired, and
services for the deaf and hard of hearing shall be available when requested
by those needing them, subject to availability of services. If special services
are needed, the services must be requested within five business days
advance notice to CAMPO staff. The availability of these services should be
mentioned in the meeting notice.

• Small group community meetings and events are actively pursued to reach
people where they are and provide an opportunity to reach those who don’t
traditionally participate in CAMPO activities.

Meetings and Community Events:

DRAFT



19

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Performance Objectives & Monitoring
The following metrics will be recorded by staff on a continuous basis to monitor success of participation 
strategies. Since the magnitude of participation in transportation issues is driven by both the organization’s 
efforts and the level of public interest, these metrics focus on actions within staff purview.

Performance Objectives (non-RTP outreach year)

Regional Transportation Plan Adoption Cycle Performance 
Objectives*

Metric Annual Objective

Number of community meetings held 10

Number of electronic newsletters sent 6

Number of social media updates 30

Number of surveys developed 2

Number of media releases distributed 2

*RTP outreach and 
preparation spans over 

two calendar years. 
These objectives are 
measured over the 

cycle of the draft RTP 
being introduced 

and the RTP being 
adopted.

In addition, CAMPO reports to Texas Department of Transportation’s (TxDOT) Civil Rights Division annually 
on Title VI activities and planned activities for the following fiscal year to ensure compliance with Title VI 
regulations. CAMPO also monitors survey responses, website traffic, CAMPO meetings, and social media.

Metric Annual Objective

Number of community meetings held 30

Number of electronic newsletters sent 12

Number of social media updates 45

Number of surveys developed 4

Number of media releases distributed 6

DRAFT



20

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Revising this Document
This Public Participation Plan is a living document, and should be revised to reflect improvements in 
participation methods. CAMPO staff welcomes comments by email to comments@campotexas.org, by mail 
to 3300 N. I-35, Suite 630, Austin, Texas 78705, and by fax to 737-708-8140.

Administrative amendments to the PPP include changes to “Participation Toolbox” strategies, revision of 
references to applicable regulations, misspellings, omissions, or typographical errors. These updates are 
performed by staff with no notification required. 

Amendments to the PPP include any other changes that do not fit the administrative definition above 
require 45 days of public comment before adoption. If the document changes significantly due to public 
comments, an additional 45-day comment period is required. 

DRAFT



21

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Appendix -- Participation Toolbox

Visualization Techniques

These outreach strategies are not meant to be finite and instead define those minimum requirements 
which are considered essential for a successful Public Participation Plan (PPP). Where study needs or local 
stakeholders/agencies deem appropriate, outreach efforts may be expanded to include additional outreach 
tactics. The following toolbox provides an array of tools, which may be utilized to further enhance the 
outreach strategies outlined in the PPP. The provided list is not exhaustive, and is intended to be updated.

Identifying Demographics of Study Area
Refine and select public participation tools that are appropriate for the identified population within the 
designated study area. 

Demographics such as income and English proficiency of the area potentially affected by a study or 
project are important to understand regarding participation. Limited English proficiency populations may 
need translation or other services and low-income communities may need additional community meeting 
access provisions or other assistance. 

CAMPO’s existing environmental justice analyses may be useful in identifying these communities, or 
specialized analysis of geographic information may be appropriate. 

Encourage universal communication tactics to help to simplify concepts and transcend language, 
economic, and educational barriers.

CAMPO strives to provide information regarding transportation-related issues in a manner which is easy 
to interpret. Visualization tools allow for the display of complex ideas via graphics with limited to no text. 
Examples include:

Photo Simulation: To enhance community understanding of proposed project designs, 
photographs of existing conditions will be integrated with 3-D design files depicting an alternate 
desired outcome. Examples include the addition of planted medians, left-hand turn lanes, rapid 
transit bus lanes, etc.

Using maps with legends 
in Spanish helps the 
Spanish population to 
understand CAMPO study 
areas, plans, and goals.

DRAFT



22

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Mapping: Allows for the spatial depiction of where projects are to be implemented and how it relates 
to the surrounding region. If warranted, GIS technology can be merged with visualization tools to 
demonstrate the final look of a proposed treatment.

Online interactive mapping tools such as a WikiMap can be used to gathered input from community 
members on their needs and challenges for various transportation modes and provide information 
about their preferred routes. 

Illustrations: Where data is not yet available, hand drawn or rendered illustrations may be used to 
show future design concepts. Examples include an illustration of Williams Drive in Georgetown to 
represent potential multimodal redevelopment. 

Williams Drive illustration.

2045 Regional Active Transportation Plan Wikimap.

DRAFT



23

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Website

Online Open House:  An online open house contains all 
information that is available at regular public meetings in 
an easy-to-access format on the CAMPO website so that 
interested persons who cannot attend a meeting can still 
have access to information and can easily submit comments.

All planning documents as well as meeting information should be made accessible via the CAMPO 
website. Providing information regarding planning activities on the CAMPO website is imperative for 
informing as many people in the region as possible. The website should provide a variety of methods to 
communicate information to and from the public.

Online Surveys: Surveys allow people to provide 
quantitative and qualitative data to be used in developing 
plans and studies.

Wikimap: This online tool provides people with the 
opportunity to select certain points of interest on a map and 
leave comments on the current conditions and/or need 
for improvement in a particular area. Data collected from 
Wikimaps can be analyzed in GIS and can be helpful for 
developing plans and studies.

Facebook Live: Streaming Transportation Policy Board and public meetings via Facebook Live 
provides an additional avenue for people who cannot attend a meeting to participate in the planning 
process and have access to the information being provided at the meeting.

Webinars: Webinars may be made available to give people the chance to view a presentation 
regarding a plan or study and ask questions directly to CAMPO staff.

Surveys

Community Surveys: To reach those who don’t typically participate in transportation planning 
meetings and opportunities, CAMPO has sought out festivals and community gathering places to 
reach a broader audience. CAMPO has attended community events and visited libraries, public transit 
facilities, community and senior centers, universities, town squares, and bike shops throughout the 
region where the project team administered paper and iPad surveys, both in English and Spanish.

Bus Rides and Surveys: To ensure the needs-based nature of CAMPO’s planning efforts, it is vital 
to receive input from those who do not have a car, share a car, or use various modes of transportation. 
CAMPO has teamed up with Capital Metro, to conduct surveys on their buses and at transit stations. 
The bus routes used should represent various demographics to include commuter lines from 
suburban areas and routes in environmental justice areas, and should be ridden at various times 
during the day to gather input from a variety of transit users. 

Online surveys allow for digital submission of 
comments and ideas.

DRAFT



24

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Social Media: Updates, dissemination of information, survey distribution, and discussion topics 
may be employed by CAMPO and project sponsor staff through their social media channels. This 
can also be accomplished by working with local agencies and advocacy groups to carry messages or 
links to the CAMPO website through their established social media network, thereby increasing the 
broadcasting abilities of CAMPO in reaching interested stakeholders. Where demographics warrant, 
staff should make every effort to advertise project updates and notifications on Spanish-oriented 
social media. Planners should remain engaged with developments in social media, as specific 
websites may change in their usefulness to the public over time. 

Facebook ads may be used to reach different demographics than those that have already liked 
the CAMPO Facebook page. The Facebook audience used for ads can include various cities in the 
CAMPO region, interests in topics such as transportation, transit, cycling, online shopping, outdoor 
activities, and can be done in both Spanish and English.

Print Media: All print media publications should make efforts to accommodate environmental justice 
populations where needed. When advertisements are submitted, staff should keep a record of the 
entity which was responsible for its publication, the date in which it was published, and the population 
in which it was intended to serve to assist with future outreach efforts. 

Radio/Television: Where warranted, project kickoff events should be announced with a press 
release to the local media. When televised, links to recordings may be provided on the CAMPO 
website. 

Media

Print media is an easy way 
to disseminate information 
quickly to the public.

Social Media 
platforms serve as 
a one-stop shop for 
CAMPO information 
online.

DRAFT



25

Public Participation Plan - 2018

An electronic notification list will include transit providers within the area, affected local and state 
agencies, and freight transportation providers who have requested to be on the mailing list and any private 
citizen or agency who request notification. Requests to be added to CAMPO's mailing list may also be 
made by telephone, e-mail, fax, or in person by visiting the CAMPO office if desired. All organizations/
individuals will remain on the mailing list until they request to be removed or are known by CAMPO not to 
desire further inclusion. Maintaining the contact database is essential for delivering information regarding 
planning activities on a mass scale. The CAMPO newsletter is intended to provide summary updates 
on the types of activities taking place at all levels of transportation planning as well as provide meeting 
notices and information. Program or project types may be updated in the quarterly or annual newsletter as 
needed.

At a minimum, the following information is recommended from interested 
parties subscribing to the electronic database:

Electronic Communication and Contact List

Email: Email notifications are intended to serve as the primary form of 
project and program updates. Where email is not available, participants 
may elect to have mail sent directly to residential addresses. 

Zip Code: Zip code information is provided for local or project 
specific programs which do not require mass, regional distribution 
of project updates. Zip code information is used primarily to solicit 
public participation for local or corridor specific project based on 
citizen defined areas of interest.

Brochures and Maps
Brochures and maps act as quick reference documents that summarize the purpose of an associated 
program and related goals and objectives. Text should be minimal and where possible, graphics or 
rendering should be used. Project websites and appropriate staff contact information should also be 
provided. 

Signing up for the CAMPO 
newsletter provides citizens the 
opportunity to get information 
directly into their email inbox.

This map outlines amendments visually.

DRAFT



26

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Community Meetings and Open Houses
CAMPO staff will conduct open houses and/or community meetings as part of the planning processes 
for the RTP, adoption of the RTP and TIP, and other major funding and project definition opportunities. 
These sessions will provide opportunities for the exchange of information between citizens and staff. Staff 
also works with CAMPO’s Transportation Policy Board members to identify active community leaders 
throughout the CAMPO area and contact these leaders to 
learn how to better reach various groups and demographics. 

Tactile Town and Other ADA formats: The CAMPO 
region is home to the state school for students with 
visual impairments. CAMPO has partnered with the 
Texas School for the Blind and Visually Impaired (TSBVI) 
to ensure visually impaired students and adults from 
a near-by workforce center have an opportunity to 
provide input on CAMPO’s planning work. CAMPO has 
conducted open houses at TSBVI with all material in 
large print and braille format and surveys administered 
verbally, when needed. Another tool, Tactile Town, has 
been used to create a tactile model of a town with good 
and bad active transportation facilities. 

Day Time and Weekend Events: CAMPO partners with local resources to get the word out and 
engage people by going to them at different times during the day and week. This includes holding 
mid-day open houses where light lunch is served, setting up booths at community events, and 
surveying transit riders at early morning transit stops and on buses during the day. CAMPO has also 
conducted outreach at Friday night high school football games. 

University Outreach: The CAMPO region is home to multiple universities, including one of the 
largest in the US, and a robust community college network. To gather feedback from college 
students, CAMPO partners with the colleges to host 
“mini-meetings” on campuses and with information 
tailored to students. 

Display Booths: Display booths provide a quick snap 
shot of a program type using project boards, posters 
and other visualization graphics. Project booths are 
mobile and may be set up throughout the project 
area. Brochures, newsletters, comment cards, and 
other informational packets may be provided in 
conjunction with display booths. Display booths may 
be used in combination with other meetings or where 
high pedestrian traffic is expected. Given their ease 
of access, display booths offer a great opportunity to 
receive informal feedback on project ideas, progress, 
or implementation tactics which will be recorded and 
summarized. 

The Tactile Town kit was used during meetings at the 
Texas School for the Blind and Visually Impaired. 

Display booths act as quick places for the public to receive 
information during larger events or activities. 

DRAFT



27

Public Participation Plan - 2018

Informational Outreach and Speakers Bureau

Advisory and Stakeholder Committees

CAMPO staff is available to present programs and/or provide materials at the request of civic or 
community groups. Requests for presentations should be made as soon as possible to ensure CAMPO 
staff are available. CAMPO also offers a speakers bureau program to allow groups to request a speaker 
on a number of topics. The speaker is most often a member of CAMPO staff, but others may be sought if 
needed. Following are a list of topics commonly requested, but other issues can also be arranged:
• CAMPO Primer
• CAMPO Studies
• CAMPO Planning Documents
• Public Involvement in Transportation Planning

Stakeholder committees are created to give a voice to members of the community in the planning process, 
particularly those in the environmental justice, underserved, and disabled populations. Stakeholder 
committees are kept well-informed of the phases of the planning process and are encouraged to share 
that information with people in their communities. Stakeholder committees are essential for spreading 
awareness and knowledge of planning efforts to a great number of people in their spheres of influence and 
ensuring a variety of needs are represented in CAMPO’s planning programs.

The TAC may serve as an advisory committee for the completion of transportation studies, plans, and 
development and programming recommendations required under state or federal laws pertaining to 
all surface modes of transportation and transportation support facilities. The TAC also serves as a forum 
and working group for regional project coordination across jurisdictional boundaries. Where warranted, 
projects may elect to request an ad hoc or smaller subset of committee member be used for preliminary 
review of certain documents before final review by the TPB.

Stakeholder meetings can provide nuanced insight in preliminary stages-- and through-out-- 
the planning process.

DRAFT



O    512.215.8225     
F     737.708.8140
E     campo@campotexas.org

3300 N. Interstate 35, Suite 630
Austin, Texas 78705

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

@CampoTexas

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

@CampoTexas

Capital Area MPO

www.campotexas.org

DRAFT



 

1                                                    DRAFT PPP UPDATE SUMMARY 
 



 

2                                                    DRAFT PPP UPDATE SUMMARY 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

3                                                    DRAFT PPP UPDATE SUMMARY 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 
Transportation Policy Board 

2019 Meeting Schedule 

 

All meetings will be held in Room 3.102 of the Joe C. Thompson Center, University of Texas 

Campus, Red River and Dean Keeton Streets and will begin promptly at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

January 14, 2019 

 

February 11, 2019 

 

March 4, 2019 

 

April 8, 2019 

 

May 6, 2019 

 

June 10, 2019 

 

July 8, 2019 

 

August 12, 2019 

 

September 9, 2019 

 

October 7, 2019 

 

November 4, 2019 

 

December 9, 2019 



Date:        October 15, 2018 

Continued From:         N/A 

Action Requested:          Information 

To: 

From: 

Agenda Item: 

Subject: 

Transportation Policy Board 

Mr. Ryan Collins, Short Range Planning Manager 

10b 

FY 2018 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Project Call 

This page is intentionally blank. 



Date:        October 15, 2018 

Continued From:         N/A 

Action Requested:          Information 

To: 

From: 

Agenda Item: 

Subject: 

Transportation Policy Board 

Mr. Ashby Johnson, Executive Director
10c
Capital-Alamo Connection Study Joint MPO TAC Workshop

This page is intentionally blank. 



DRAFT Fort Worth/Waco/Temple-Killeen/Austin/San Antonio/Laredo  
High-Speed Transportation Study 

DRAFT June 2018  Page 1 

 

Background 
In late 2017, the Federal Railroad Administration published the Record of Decision (ROD) and 
Tier 1 Texas-Oklahoma Passenger Rail Service (TOPRS) Final Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS).  While this document did evaluate conventional, higher-speed, and high-speed 
passenger train alignments, the document focused on service and operations and broadly 
addressed corridor issues and alternatives. The document did not consider emerging modes or 
technologies.  Prior to building high-speed passenger service, Tier 2 [project-level National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)] evaluations are needed to analyze site-specific projects. 
 
The Tier 1 alternatives were developed to a level of 
detail appropriate for a service-level analysis and 
need to be refined to optimize performance, reduce 
cost, and/or avoid specific properties or individual 
environmental resources.  The TOPRS ROD and 
Final EIS recommended the following alternatives 
be evaluated further in future (Tier 2) NEPA 
document(s): 
 

• Alternative N4A Conventional Rail service (N4A 
CONV) from Oklahoma City to Fort Worth with 
service extending to Dallas.  

• Alternative C4A High-Speed Rail service (C4A 
HSR) from Dallas-Fort Worth to San Antonio. 
Service would operate between Fort Worth and 
Dallas with a stop at Dallas/Fort Worth 
International Airport and extend south from 
Dallas to San Antonio. 

• Alternative C4B High-Speed Rail service (C4B 
HSR) from Dallas and Fort Worth to San 
Antonio. Service would operate between Fort 
Worth to Dallas with a stop in Arlington, then 
continuing south from Arlington to San Antonio.  

• Alternative C4C High-Speed Rail service (C4C 
HSR) from Dallas and Fort Worth to San 
Antonio. Service on this route would operate in 
a clockwise direction, running from Hillsboro to 
Fort Worth, east to Dallas, with a stop at 
Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport, back to 
Hillsboro, and south to San Antonio.  

• Alternative S4 Higher-Speed Rail service (S4 
HrSR) from San Antonio to Brownsville with an 
east-west leg from Laredo to Corpus Christi 
intersecting the north-south service in Alice. 

• Alternative S6 Higher-Speed Rail service (S6 
HrSR) and Alternative S6 High-Speed Rail 
service (S6 HSR) from San Antonio to Laredo, 
extending to Monterrey, Mexico. These 
alternatives were selected only if the 
Monterrey, Mexico, connection is built.   



DRAFT Fort Worth/Waco/Temple-Killeen/Austin/San Antonio/Laredo  
High-Speed Transportation Study 

DRAFT June 2018  Page 2 

 

High-Speed Transportation Study Purpose 
To help expedite future Tier 2 project-level NEPA document(s), this study will conduct a high-
speed transportation study for passenger service from Fort Worth/Waco/Temple-
Killeen/Austin/San Antonio/Laredo.  The purpose of this study is to prepare a set of alternative 
recommendations to be evaluated in a Tier 2 NEPA document(s).  This study will review 
previous studied alignments, evaluate technology options (e.g., conventional high-speed rail, 
next generation magnetic levitation), and identify potential station locations.  The 
recommendations from TOPRS ROD and EIS would serve as the basis for the study.   
 

Participants 
The six Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) along the potential alignments would 
partner to fund and oversee the study.  These include: 
 

• North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) 

• Waco MPO 

• Killeen-Temple MPO (KTMPO) 

• Capital Area MPO (CAMPO) 

• Alamo Area MPO (AAMPO) 

• Laredo MPO 
 

Proposed Connectivity Study Cost and Procurement 
It is estimated this high-speed transportation study would cost $500,000.  NCTCOG is proposed 
to lead in the procurement of a consultant to conduct the study, including the development of 
the Request for Proposals (RFP).  Representatives from the participating MPOs would review 
the scope of work prior to the RFP release, serve on the selection committee for the 
procurement, and serve on the study review committee. 
 

Proposed Connectivity Study Outline 
It is anticipated this high-speed transportation study would include six major tasks and take 
approximately nine to 12 months to complete.  The following lists these tasks and who would be 
responsible for the work. 
 

Major Tasks Primary Responsibility 

Task 1 – Project Management NCTCOG and Consultant 

Task 2 – Review and document emerging technology 
options (e.g., next generation magnetic levitation) and 
design criteria 

Consultant 

Task 3 – Review of TOPRS ROD and Final EIS and Draft 
EIS comments 

Consultant 

Task 4 – Alternative development and screening of 
potential technology and modes (e.g., cost, operation, 
maintenance), the need to revise TOPRS alignment(s) to 
facilitate other technologies, and potential station locations 

Respective MPOs and 
Consultant 

Task 5 – Stakeholder involvement  Respective MPOs 

Task 6 – Document study findings, recommendations, and 
next steps 

Consultant 

 



  Scope of Services for Fort Worth/Waco/Temple-Killeen/Austin/ 
San Antonio/Laredo High-Speed Transportation Study  

June 2018  Page 1 

 
 

Study Purpose 
To help expedite future Tier 2 project-level National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 
document(s), this project will conduct a high-speed transportation study for passenger service 
from Fort Worth/Waco/Temple-Killeen/Austin/San Antonio/Laredo.  The purpose of this study is 
to prepare a set of alternative recommendations to be evaluated in a Tier 2 NEPA document(s).  
This study will review previous studied alignments, evaluate technology options (e.g., 
conventional high-speed rail, next generation magnetic levitation), and identify potential station 
locations.  The recommendations from the Tier 1 Texas-Oklahoma Passenger Rail Service 
(TOPRS) Record of Decision (ROD) and Final Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) would 
serve as the basis for the study.   
 

Background 
In late 2017, the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) published the ROD and Tier 1 TOPRS 
Final EIS.  While this document did evaluate conventional, higher speed, and high-speed 
passenger train alignments, the document focused on service and operations and broadly 
addressed corridor issues and alternatives. The document did not consider other modes or 
technologies.  Prior to building high speed passenger service, Tier 2 project-level NEPA 
evaluations are needed to analyze site-specific projects. 
 
The Tier 1 alternatives were developed to a level of detail appropriate for a service-level 
analysis and need to be refined to optimize performance, reduce cost, and/or avoid specific 
properties or individual environmental resources.  The TOPRS ROD and Final EIS 
recommended the six alternatives be evaluated further in future (Tier 2) NEPA document(s): 
 

• Alternative N4A Conventional Rail service (N4A CONV) from Oklahoma City to Fort Worth 
with service extending to Dallas.  

• Alternative C4A High-Speed Rail service (C4A HSR) from Dallas-Fort Worth to San Antonio. 
Service would operate between Fort Worth and Dallas with a stop at Dallas/Fort Worth 
International Airport and extend south from Dallas to San Antonio. 

• Alternative C4B High-Speed Rail service (C4B HSR) from Dallas and Fort Worth to San 
Antonio. Service would operate between Fort Worth to Dallas with a stop in Arlington, then 
continuing south from Arlington to San Antonio.  

• Alternative C4C High-Speed Rail service (C4C HSR) from Dallas and Fort Worth to San 
Antonio. Service on this route would operate in a clockwise direction, running from Hillsboro 
to Fort Worth, east to Dallas, with a stop at Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport, back to 
Hillsboro, and south to San Antonio.  

• Alternative S4 Higher-Speed Rail service (S4 HrSR) from San Antonio to Brownsville with an 
east-west leg from Laredo to Corpus Christi intersecting the north-south service in Alice. 

• Alternative S6 Higher-Speed Rail service (S6 HrSR) and Alternative S6 High-Speed Rail 
service (S6 HSR) from San Antonio to Laredo, extending to Monterrey, Mexico. This 
alternative was selected only if the Monterrey, Mexico, connection is built.   

 
  



  Scope of Services for Fort Worth/Waco/Temple-Killeen/Austin/ 
San Antonio/Laredo High-Speed Transportation Study  

June 2018  Page 2 

 
 

Description of Work 
 
Task 1 – Project Management 
This high-speed transportation study is being jointly funded by the six Metropolitan Planning 
Organizations (MPOs) along the potential alignments, including:  North Central Texas Council of 
Governments (NCTCOG), Waco MPO, Killeen-Temple MPO (KTMPO), Capital Area MPO 
(CAMPO), Alamo Area MPO (AAMPO), and Laredo MPO.  NCTCOG will serve as the 
administrator of the study. 
 
1.1  Work Plan and Schedule 
The Consultant Engineer will prepare a work plan and schedule that will describe, in detail, the 
activities, steps, and responsibilities necessary to complete this study within the contract 
timeframe. This work plan and schedule will be reviewed on a monthly basis and revised, as 
needed, throughout the study. 
 
1.2  Kick-Off and Coordination Meetings 
The Consultant will conduct one project kick-off meeting with the participating MPOs to review 
the project scope, schedule, deliverables, and project objectives.  Throughout the study, the 
Consultant will conduct coordination meetings with the participating MPOs by webinar/phone 
(up to six). 
 
1.3  Invoicing 
The Consultant will submit monthly billing and progress reports (up to 12) to NCTCOG in the 
required format.  Progress reports should include work accomplished and status for each project 
task; estimated percentage of work completed and budget spent; work activities anticipated for 
following month; and existing or anticipated problems that may affect the budget, schedule or 
work products of the study. 
 
1.4  Release of Study Materials 
Data and deliverables for this study will be shared through e-mail or electronic file transfer as 
needed.  No member of the Consultant team shall release study materials or deliverables to any 
agency, organization, or person without prior written consent of the NCTCOG Project Manager. 
 

Electronic Deliverables:  
• Work plan and schedule 

• Project kick-off meeting summary 

• Coordination meeting summaries 

• Monthly invoices and progress reports 
 
Hardcopy Deliverables: 
• Agendas, handouts, and other materials for project kick-off 

 
Task 2 – Review Technology and Design Criteria 
The Consultant will review potential fixed guideway technology options and associated design 
criterion (e.g., horizontal curvature and clearances, vertical grades and clearances, right-of-way 
requirements, required operating equipment and requirements) and recommended station 
spacing.  At a minimum, conventional, higher speed, and high-speed passenger rail; magnetic 
levitation; and next generation magnetic levitation should be considered.  The Consultant will 
prepare typical sections and assess the feasibility and order of magnitude costs (e.g., 
construction, operating and maintenance) of each technology option. 



  Scope of Services for Fort Worth/Waco/Temple-Killeen/Austin/ 
San Antonio/Laredo High-Speed Transportation Study  

June 2018  Page 3 

 
 

Electronic Deliverables:  
• Technical memorandum summarizing task effort and findings 

 
Task 3 – Review of Previous Studies and Comments 
The Consultant will review the recommendations, alternative analyses, and public comments 
received during TOPRS and the Fort Worth High-Speed Rail Planning Study.  Additionally, the 
Consultant will applicable national, state, and regional transportation plans to identify additional 
alignments, technology, and station opportunities that should be evaluated in Task 4. 
 

Electronic Deliverables:   
• Technical memorandum summarizing task effort and findings  

 
Task 4 – Alternative Development 
Based on previous studies and stakeholder comments, the Consultant will develop and screen 
alternatives for consideration.   
  
4.1  Technology and Modes 
The consultant will evaluate the appropriateness and benefits of various technologies.  Because 
of the length of corridor, the Consultant will consider the possibility of a combination of 
technologies and modes in the various segments (e.g., Fort Worth to Austin, Austin to San 
Antonio, San Antonio to Laredo).  At a minimum, between Austin and San Antonio, regional rail 
or guaranteed transit using the dynamically priced (tolled) managed lanes on IH 35 will be 
considered.  The following graphic shows possible options. 
 
 
 
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Scope of Services for Fort Worth/Waco/Temple-Killeen/Austin/ 
San Antonio/Laredo High-Speed Transportation Study  

June 2018  Page 4 

 
 

4.2  Alignments 
The Consultant will refine TOPRS alignment recommendations based on comments from MPOs 
and stakeholder, technology requirements, and/or modes.  The Consultant will document any 
revisions and the specific reasons for such revisions.  
 
4.3  Station Locations 
Based on the alignments developed in Task 4.2, the Consultant will identify potential station 
locations along the corridor. 
 
4.4  Alternative Screening 
The Consultant will develop a set of relevant screening criteria and factors to compare various 
technologies, alignments, and station locations.   Using order of magnitude costs, the 
Consultant will develop an opinion of probable construction cost for each conceptual alternative.  
Based on this screening and stakeholder input, the Consultant will recommend alignments, 
station locations and technologies to be considered in the NEPA document(s).  
 

Electronic Deliverables:  
• Technical memorandum and mapping/graphics summarizing findings and 

recommendations to be incorporated into the final report.   

• An opinion of probable construction cost for each conceptual alternative.   
 
Task 5 – Stakeholder Involvement 
This task will include support for stakeholder meetings.  Stakeholders would include elected 
officials, city and county staff, and local transportation officials.  The purpose of these meetings 
is to engage stakeholders in the discussion of community visions and ideas for high-speed 
passenger service as well as receive comments on draft recommendations.   
 
Each respective MPO will be responsible for coordinating and reserving the meeting locations, 
sending out meeting notices, and conducting the meetings.  The Consultant will support this 
effort by helping identify stakeholders; engaging stakeholders in the discussions; developing 
meeting notices, sign-in sheets, handouts, and presentation materials; and making technical 
presentations.  It is estimated that two series of stakeholder meetings will be held for a total of 
10 meetings.  The first series of meetings will solicit input on community visions, technology, 
alignments, and station opportunities.  The second series of meetings will review findings and 
draft recommendations. 

 
Electronic Deliverables:  

• Handouts and presentations for two series of stakeholder meetings 

• Meeting summaries for each meeting documenting attendees, information presented, 
items discussed, comments/questions, and resulting action items. 

 
Task 6 – Final Report 
The Consultant will prepare a final report summarizing the efforts of this study.  The report will 
incorporate the deliverables from Tasks 1 through 5.  The report will include recommended 
alignments, technologies, and potential station locations to include in future Tier 2 NEPA 
document(s), unresolved issues along with next steps.  For alignments, technologies, and 
potential station locations not recommended, the report should clearly state the reasons for 
such.  
  

 



  Scope of Services for Fort Worth/Waco/Temple-Killeen/Austin/ 
San Antonio/Laredo High-Speed Transportation Study  

June 2018  Page 5 

 
 

Electronic Deliverables:   
• Final report in Word and pdf formats 

 




	Revised TPB Agenda 10-15-2018
	TPB Meeting Summary (Aug13 2018)
	Item 7 Capital Metro Background
	Capital Metro Cap Remap Title VI Equity Analysis - June 2018
	2017-0326 Joseph closure
	Allegations
	Analysis
	Conclusion

	Item 8 Reg Incident Management
	Draft CAMPO Regional IM Strategic Plan
	Item 9 Update on PPP
	DRAFT PPP Update
	PPP update summary
	2019 TPB Meeting Schedule
	Item 10b Blank Page
	Item 10c Blank Page
	FW to Laredo study outline_jul 2018
	Background
	High-Speed Transportation Study Purpose
	Proposed Connectivity Study Cost and Procurement
	Proposed Connectivity Study Outline

	2018_05_18 DRAFT FW_LAR SOW
	IMG_20180921_135552 resized



